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2001 HIGHLIGHTS

Diluted earnings per share rose 22% to $1.65.

Assets under management grew 17% to $239 billion. .

Net new business exceeded $31 billion.

Assets managed for institutional clients increased 21% to $206 billion.
Raised $3.2 billion of closed-end fund assets, more than any other manager.
Named U.S. bond maﬂager of the year by Global Investor in January 2002.
Fixed income assets reached a record level of $135 billion.

Liquidity assets increased 30% to $80 billion.

International equity assets approached $9 billion.

Alternative investments exceeded $5 billion, up 53%.

BlackRock Solutions revenue increased over 50%.

Opened new facilities in Wilmington, San Francisco and Hong Kong.

Launched new small and mid cap value equity team in Boston in January 2002.

Moving entire New York City team into new headQuarters in early 2002.




Years ended December 31,

(en thousands of dollars, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999
Revenue $533,144 $476,872 $380,981
Operating Income 170,176 143,038 110,943
Net Income 107,434 87,361 59,417
EBITDA® 207,773 170,767 132,541
Operating Margin® 36.0% 35.7% 36.7%
Per Common Share:
Diluted Earnings 1.65 1.35 1.04
Pro-forma Diluted Earnings ©@ 1.65 1.35 0.99
Diluted Cash Earnings<d) 1.82 1.51 1.21
Book Value 7.54 5.75 4.39
Assets Under Management (#n mzillions) 238,584 203,769 164,517

(@) Earnings before intevest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

(&) Operating income divided by total revenue less fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates.

(¢) Based on adjusting 1999 net income to reflect the after-tax intevest expense benefit of vetiring $115 million of debt with the net proceeds of
the Company's IPO and adjusting the weighted-average diluted shares outstanding to reflect the offering of 9 million shares.
(d) Net income plus intangible amortization expense for the period divided by average diluted shares outstanding.
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

am pleased to report that 2001 was another strong year for BlackRock. Earnings per share rose
22% on the strength of industry-leading growth in assets under management to $239 billion.
Net new business of more than $31 billion accounted for 90% of the increase in managed assets,
again differentatng BlackRock from competitors who have relied on acquisitions or on market appre-
ciation to expand their asset bases. Our results reflect the efforts of the BlackRock team, nearly 800
strong In seven offices worldwide, coming together day-in and day-out to deliver excepdonal
performance and service to our clients. Without the dedicadon of these professionals and their
unwavering commitment to excellence and teamwork, we could not continue to realize such accom-

plishments.

In 2001, we benefited from investments made over many years, with a broader array of business efforts
contributing to our results than ever before. BlackRock Solutions, our risk management advisory and
investment system services team, added 11 new assignments and achieved revenue growth in excess of
50%. Owr liquidity business, supported by a favorable interest rate environment and strong sales
efforts, grew by 30%. Our real estate finance group raised almost $800 million of capital and com-
mitments in a variety of products, contributing to the growth we achieved in alternative investments
last year. International equity assets increased more than 8%, a remarkable achievement in light
of the significant headwinds in these markets. And fixed income remained strong, with over $22
billion of new fundings more than offsetting approximately $12 billion of cutflows resulting from
mergers, market rebalancing actvity and closed-end bond fund maturides. Importanty, relatve

performance, the most critical determinant of future growth, remained strong in all of these products.

The only area in which we failed to realize growth during the year was domestic equides. The effort
suffered from poor market and relative performance, as well as asset outflows. We are actively engaged
in developing strategies to reshape our domestic equity business, evaluating numerous hiring and
acquisition opportunities, with significant weight given to strategic fit and shared commitment to a
disciplined investment process and a team approach. During the year, these efforts led to the forma-
tion of a new seven-person small and mid cap value team led by Wayne Archambo, who joined
BlackRock on January 1, 2002. Addidonal invesunents will be required, and we are actively pursuing

opportunides to further restructure this business in the coming year.



A variety of trends are changing the landscape in our industry, giving rise to new challenges and new
opportunities for investors. For example, the composition of the domestic bond market has experi-
enced tremendous change. As the Federal budget shifted from a deficit to a surplus, Treasury issuance
declined sharply. At the same tume, spurred by both lower rates and reduced bank lending actvity,
corporate bond offerings increased dramadcally. Since 1998, nearly $2 willion of corporate bonds
have been issued, exceeding the total otfered in the previous ten years combined, and credit securities
grew to 27% of the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index, up from 18% in 1996. In addidon, insdtu-
tional investors have overtaken banks in the bank loan market, accounting for 64% of primary
market purchases in 2001, up from 36% in 1996. As the capital markets assume the tradidgonal role
of banks in corporate lending, the ability to evaluate and properly price credit risk will be of

paramournt importance.

Equity investors face different, but no less significant, challenges. Two years of declining markets are
only part of the story. Growth and value investment styles have diverged sharply, fostering voladlity
in asset flows industrywide. Last year, large cap growth fund managers had a particularly difficult year,
capping off a decade that included six years in which median returns fell short of the benchmark. In
additon, more than half of all large cap core and value funds underperformed their benchmarks in
eight of the last ten years. These facts are causing institutional investors to question their traditonal
investment choices and to modify their blend of higher and lower risk strategies by, among other
things, increasing their allocation to alternative investments. Individual investors, on the other hand,
are placing greater emphasis on strategies that are tax efficient, as reflected in the rapid growth of the

managed account business among brokerage firms and other high net worth advisors.

Finally, both bond and equity investors are challenged by the continuing globalization of the world’s
economies and markets. Economic shocks, whether arising from polidcal unrest, economic weakness,
credit disruptions or fraud, have a ripple effect across financial markets worldwide. Most recently,
Enron’s collapse, the ensuing Congressional inquiry and the Justice Deparunent’s indicument of
Arthur Andersen have highlighted the need for effective financial controls. And companies in all
industries are under tremendous pressure to ensure the integrity of their operating and risk manage-

ment capabilides.

BlackRock is meeting these challenges head-on and vigorously pursuing the opportunities they rep-
resent, all in a manner consistent with fostering continuity of our team culture, our unified operating
platform and our financial discipline. We are aggressively pursuing enhancements to our domestdc
equity business. We are expanding our quanttative and fundamental credit capabilides, adding
strength to meet the demands of a global bond market increasingly dominated by corporate credit
issues. We are developing a marketing and client service effort for high net worth investors that will
leverage our expertise in municipal bonds and in portfolio management for taxable institutions.
We are further developing our systems and BlackRock Solutons business, which will help ensure
exceptional operational risk management for both BlackRock and BlackRock Solutions clients. And
we continue to foster cross-fertlization of ideas and development of our global perspective by

encouraging communication across disciplines in a variety of regular forums and daily interacdons.

All of these efforts are guided by our desire to better serve our clients, to wanscend the typical vendor

relationship by listening to our clients, understanding their challenges and collaborating on solutions.
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Our marketing and client service effort is centralized through a senior relationship manager who is
responsible for delivering all of BlackRock’s products and resources. At the same time, we recognize
that no individual is capable of fully serving any client and that exceptional reladonships can only be
established and sustained through effective teamwork, open communicadon and excellence in all
efforts. These are the hallmarks of BlackRock’s business model, the foundation upon which we have
realized over $30 billion of net new business in each of the last three years, and the basis upon which

we continue to strive to create value for our clients and shareholders.

Promoting the stability of our team and attracting talented professionals to add depth and breadth to
our bench are among our top priorides. We pursue these objectives in numerous ways. We empha-
size entry-level recruiting, which helps us perpetuate our culture and motvates us to continually build
the platform to provide robust career opportunities. We are expanding our global presence, with new
headquarters in Manhattan, new facilides in Boston, Edinburgh, Hong Kong, San Francisco and
Wilmington, and additional staff worldwide. To maintain a team culture as we become more physi-
cally dispersed, we have invested in and rely on a virtual platform that facilitates communication and
information flow firmwide. Finally, we employ a compensation framework that emphasizes perform-
ance bonuses and incentives, including stock options and long-term deferred compensation plans,
which align employee, client and shareholder interests and provide meaningful financial incendves to

protect our franchise and grow our platform.

Above all else, the year was marked by immense tragedy that touched the lives of our employees,
families and friends. The events of September 11th, and the enormous, senseless loss of life suffered
on that day, will forever be etched on our memories. If the wue measure of one’s character is best
gauged in times of adversity, I must say that I have never been prouder of BlackRock’s teamn than in
the days and weeks that followed the attacks. We stayed in close contact with our clients. We worked
together to re-open our institutional money market funds and provide much needed liquidity. We
coordinated with custodians and counterparties to restore order to the markets. We maintained our
investment discipline, managing through bond price volatility in excess of even the most voladle stock
market conditions. In a time of unprecedented grief and uncertainty, our collective resolve to stay

focused on our mission to serve our clients strengthened us individually, as a team and as a firm.

To our employees, I would like to express my sincere appreciation for your outstanding efforts, and
to encourage each of you to constantly raise the bar as you strive to realize your full potendal. To our
Board of Directors, thank you for your advice and continued dedication to BlackRock. To our clients
and shareholders, I want to reiterate our commitiment to serve your needs and earn your confidence.
I look forward to working with all of you as we build upon our past successes and expand our future

horizons.

Sincerely,

Laurence D. Fink
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 2002



OUR CLIENTS

lackRock provides invesument and risk management services to a prestigious universe of
taxable and tax-exempt institutional investors worldwide. Institutional assets under manage-
ment have grown at a compound annual rate of 29% over the past five years, to $206 billion
at December 31, 2001. The marketing and client service efforts of our account management group
and liquidity sales force resulted in over $31 billion in net new business last year, or 90% of the total

growth in assets under management.

BlackRock is widely recognized for the quality of our client service. Our business model is client-
centric, rather than product-centric, which means that a senior reladonship manager is responsible for
delivering all products and the full resources of BlackRock to each client. Our approach is designed
to promote a comprehensive understanding of each client’s business so that we can transcend the

typical vendor relatdonship and work collaboratively with our clients to best meet their needs.

Over the years, incremental fundings from existing clients have been an important source of new
business. More recently, additional assignments from existing clients have become an increasingly
important source of growth. At year-end 2001, more than 200 clients employed BlackRock to man-
age multiple mandates, and 41 client relationships exceeded $1 billion in assets under management.

Of course, existing clients are not our sole source of growth. In 2001, we added $23 billion of assets
for over 300 new institutional clients. Importanty, we have been able to attract new

business from an increasingly diverse universe of investors. For example, initiatives -

Institutional Clients
Assets Under Management

investors contributed over $3.4 billion in net new business. In addition, assets managed 8 in billions

targeting money market investors on the futures exchanges and institutional bond fund

for international clients increased to $33 billion, or 16% of total instdtutional assets
. . $206
under management, as a result of expanded efforts in Europe and Asia. :

We believe that our sustained record of organic growth is a strong validadon of our $171

client-centric business model. We have been able to achieve greater cross-selling suc-
cess, capitalize on the continuing wend among insttutional investors to consolidate $130
their manager relationships, increase penetration in established channels and pursue a
broader range of new business opportunites. As we expand our institudonal product 599

offerings and our global presence, we expect these factors to become even more com-

pelling sources of growth.
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OUR CLIENTS coNnT’'D

BlackRock serves individual investors principally through its open-end fund family, BlackRock Funds,
and 29 publicly-taded closed-end bond funds. In 2001, assets managed in these products held steady
at $33 billion, an accomplishment given the adverse equity market conditions that prevailed through-
out the year. In pardcular, we benefited from our product mix, the saength of our reladonships with
fund distributors and our ability to redirect resources to capitalize on market opportunities.

BlackRock Funds suffered an 8% drop in assets under management to $24 billion. Significandy,
though, we recorded net subscriptions of more than $600 million, as bond and money market fund
inflows overcame equity fund outflows. Further, our 19 regional wholesalers were able to sustain
positive disaribution momentum through broker dealers and other intermediaries, who are becoming
an increasingly important source of distributon for our funds. At year-end, wholesale channels

represented over 31% of our equity and bond fund assets, up from 22% just two years ago.

‘While adverse equity market conditions overwhelmed results in open-end funds last year, the market
for closed-end bond funds became viable for the first time in several years. We were able to leverage
BlackRock’s relationships with national and regional broker dealers, as well as our strong past per-
formance in these products and the marketing capabilities of our funds group, to capitalize on these
opportunities. During the year, we raised $3.2 billion in closed-end bond fund assets, more than
any other manager in the industry. The offerings included a mix of term trusts, a product BlackRock

introduced in 1988, and perpetual bond funds, adding an important source of revenues

for years to come. Market conditons permitting, we will seek to offer addidonal

Retail Murual Funds closed-end funds in 2002.

Assets Under Management

& in billions
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Finally, at December 31, 2001, BlackRock also managed over $500 million of assets in
separate accounts and alternative investments for high net worth investors. Largely
as a result of our strength in municipal bond management, prospective clients have
increasingly sought our services. Accordingly, we are exploring optons for formaliz-
ing a wealth management marketing and client service effort. As with our fund distri-

bution efforts, we expect to proceed on a measured basis, increasing our investments in

new and exisdng channels as our product capabilities and business conditions warrant.
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FIXED INCOME

ixed Income investment management remains at the core of BlackRock’s franchise. At year-
end 2001, fixed income assets under management totaled $135 billion, or 57% of total assets
under management. An additional $5.3 billion of fixed income assets are managed in a vari-
ety of alternative investments, including hedge funds, collateralized bonds obligatdons and real estate
debt offerings. In total, we have achieved a compound annual growth rate of 28% in all fixed income

products over the last five years.

Investment performance, delivering what we promise to our investors, is critical to sustaining the
growth of our business. Our objective is to achieve strong risk-adjusted returns primarily by select-
ing those bond market sectors and securities that offer the greatest potential for total return.
Investment strategy is developed using a highly disciplined, centralized process to best leverage the
sector expertise and market experience of our investment professionals and to ensure minimal disper-

sion of results across portfolios that have common investment objectives and guidelines.

Over 95% of the assets in our fixed income composites and 100% of the assets in our fixed income
mutual funds ranked in the top two quartiles of their peer groups for the one, three, five, seven and
ten-jrear. periods ended December 31, 2001.* Through the years, we have encountered a wide
variety of economic and market environments, and we believe that the consistency of our perform-

ance validates our investment process and contributes strongly to client confidence in BlackRock.

The same investinent team that manages our traditional fixed income portfolios man-

Fixed Income
and Alternatives

absolute return strategies complement each other and, in fact, strengthen our investment ?S_SCIK_S”Uﬂder Management
772 Brilions

ages our alternative invesunent products. This reflects our view that total return and

perspective. Strong performance in alternative investments led to $1.8 billion of 141

growth in these products last year, and an addidonal $667 million of capital commit-

ments to be drawn down in real estate debt products as investment opportunites are $120
developed. M
In January 2002, Global Investor named BlackRock the U.S. bond manager of the year, 589
citing performance, investtnent process, risk management and stability of the team.

Investment managers are nominated for this award by institutional consultants, and the $f’:

winner is chosen by a panel of industry participants. The award is a tribute not only to
our portfolio managers, but to our entre team, whose daily efforts continue vo differ-

entate the firm.

98 99 00 Ot
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LIQUIDITY

lackRock’s liquidity assets under management stood at $80 billion at year-end 2001,

representing 33% of our total assets. BlackRock Provident Insdtutdonal Funds, our inst-

tudonal money market fund family, comprised two-thirds of our liquidity assets, with the
remainder managed in BlackRock Funds money market portfolios and a variety of accounts for secu-
rity lending and other liquidity investors. Assets wended up throughout the year, driving a 22%
increase in average assets, from $57 billion in 2000 to $70 billion in 2001.

A portion of BlackRock’s $19 billion increase in liquidity assets clearly can be attributed to the extra-
ordinary rate environment that we experienced in 2001. While adverse equity markets caused
considerable volatlity in security lending portfolios, the 475 basis point drop in the discount rate
that resulted from a record 11 rate cuts by the Federal Reserve drove substandally greater inflows.
Through the direct marketing efforts of our liquidity sales force and increased cross-selling, we added
nearly 300 new liquidity clients last year.

Competitive performance remains a key factor in manager selection, and our institutional funds

continued to rank among the top of their peer groups for the one, three, five, seven and ten-year

periods ended December 31, 2001.* Importantly, our funds navigated weaker business conditions,

avoiding credit problems that arose in the market throughout the year. Our success is a testament to

our strong credit research capabilities and to the disciplined investment process employed by our
liquidity portfolio management team:.

Liquidity

& in billions

$49

o8

Assets Under Management

$s58

99

We have also distinguished BlackRock on the basis of client service. On September 11,
we had already opened the BlackRock Provident Institutional Funds for business when
tragedy staruck. As key market participants were dislocated and the markets were thrust

$80

into turmoil, we remained open and focused on preserving liquidity. A number of our
clients urgendy needed access to their cash. In response, our entire team mobilized

$61 and, on September 12, we were the first insdtutdonal money market fund family to

re-open. We worked closely with our clients to meet their needs and with our trading

counterparties to restore order to the market as quickly as possible.

Of course, market conditons will continue to strongly influence the flow of funds in
liquidity products. Our focus will be on those elements of the business within our con-
trol: maintaining our investment discipline and compettive performance, increasing
our institational market share, and diversifying our client base through selective new

product introductions.

o0 o1

* See performance notes on inside back cover







EQUITY

or the first time in over a quarter century, all three of the major U.S. market indices declined

for a second consecutive year. In addidon, major internatonal equity market indices recorded

losses in excess of 20%. And equity mutual fund inflows dropped 90% from 2000. Clearly,
2001 was a hostile business environment for equity managers. At year-end, equity assets represented
less than 8% of BlackRock’s assets under management, falling 18% to $18 billion. The results, how-
ever, differed dramatcally by product.

Strong new business efforts in internadonal equities overcame sharp market declines, and assets under
management ended the year up over 8% to $8.7 billion. Over the past two years, net new business
from insttudonal investors in these products has totaled $9.2 billion. Significantly, nearly 50% of
these assets have been raised from clients for whom we manage fixed income or liquidity portfolios,
demonstrating our ability to leverage our institutional platform with strong products. Our interna-
tional equity composites, which include broad internatonal equity mandates as well as those with
customized geographic focus, outperformed their benchmarks in 2001. These results will help
support continued growth in these products.

In contrast, the combinaton of market declines and net redemptions caused domestic equities to fall
33% to $9.5 billion. Our domestic equity business is largely retail, with 85% of assets in mutual funds
and nearly 40% of assets invested in growth strategies, the hardest hit segment of the market in each

of the last two years. While styles and strategies clearly go in and out of favor, our

domestc equity performance has fallen significandy short of our expectations; and we
ﬁ;‘s‘;i?Under Management have yet to build an institudonal equity platform consistent with the quality of our
& dm bitions other businesses.
$22
S To enhance our domestic equity capabilities, we have sought to identify profes-
$19 sionals who have proven capabilities and who want to be part of building a larger, more
M 5*8 successful franchise. During the year, that process led to our assembling a 7-person
$1s small and mid cap value team led by Wayne Archambo, a well-established insttu-
() tional manager who joined BlackRock on January 1, 2002 and with whom we expect to
’ be able to build a substantial asset base over time. We remain committed to hiring or
acquiring the capabilides needed to further strengthen our domestic equity effort, and
@ g we are hopeful that additdonal progress will be made in the coming year.
L]l =
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BLACKROCK SOLUTIONS

n 2001, the firm achieved over 50% revenue growth in BlackRock Soludons, our risk manage-

ment advisory and investment systemn outsourcing products. During the year, we added 11 new

mandates, including 8 risk management advisory assignments and 3 system outsourcing clients.
At year-end, 30 clients employed BlackRock Solutions services with respect to 1,500 portfolios
representing over $1.7 trillion of positions.

In 2001, the BlackRock Solutions team completed its second system outsourcing implementaton, and
three addidonal implementadons are currentdy in process. Our enterprise investunent system offers
clients the benefit of the firm’s highly sophisticated portfolio management system, featuring straight-
through processing of invesunent operations with fully integrated, state-of-the-practice financial
analydcs. These capabilides, which have been developed over the past 14 years to support
BlackRock’s own portfolio management process, allow clients to enhance their productivity while
reducing operational risk.

BlackRock Solutions’ advisory and hedging clientele also expanded considerably during the year.
These companies retain BlackRock to model their holdings, analyze their risk exposures and provide
advice with respect to their most complex risk management challenges. Advisory services may also
include joint development of risk mitigaton strategies and, at the clients direction, execudon of
hedging transactions. Advisory services are highly customized to meet the unique requirements of
" each client.

Following Enron’s collapse, companies are coming under increased scrudny for BlackRock Solutions

the quality of internal controls and their ability to manage operadonal risk. This
focus has reinforced the need for the type of integrated, value-added soludons that
BlackRock can offer, and we expect interest in BlackRock Solutons to remain strong.

BlackRock realizes a number of direct benefits from this relatively new effort. As
BlackRock Solutions’ biggest client, we continue to rely on these capabilites to sup-
port our investment process and operations. In addition, although these activities
will tend to depress our operating margins during the start-up phase, we benefit
financially to the degree that we are able to defray a portion of our systems develop-
ment costs and diversify our revenue soweam. Over the past two years, we have
significanty enhanced our ability to support growth in this business, and we remain
enthusiastic about the potential value that can be created over time through
BlackRock Solutions.

Number of Assignments




b,




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

* Selected Financial Data
‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Reports on Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Consolidated Statements of Income |
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Board of Directors and Managing Directors

Corporate Information




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data presented below has been devived in part
from, and should be read in comjunction with, the consolidated
financial starements of BlackRock, Inc. (“BlackRock”) and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

financial statesments of BlackRock include the “carved out” bistor-
ical operating wesults of the asset management businesses of The
PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. (“PNC”), which were
consolidated under BlackRock in 1998 as if the combined operations

and Results of Operations” included hevein. The consolidated

bad been a separate entity priov to the formation of BlackRock.

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amotnts in thousands, except per shave data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Income statement data
Revenue
Investment advisory and administration fees:
Mutual funds $217,361 $229,259 $214,728 $162,487 $117,977
Separate accounts 278,126 223,521 154,046 101,352 62,985
BlackRock Asset Investors (BAD)®D —_ — (7,072) 61,199 13,867
Total advisory and adininistration fees 495,487 452,780 361,702 325,038 194,829
Other income 37,657 24,092 19,279 14,444 10,644
Tortal revenue 533,144 476,872 380,981 339,482 205,473
Expense
Employee compensation and benefits 215,118 189,684 138,025 109,741 73,217
BAI incentive compensationt!) — — (5,387) 44,806 9,688
Fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates 60,829 75,686 78,666 52,972 27,278
General and administration 76,567 58,311 48,570 38,696 29,764
Amortization of intangible assets 10,454 10,153 9,653 9,653 9,653
Closed-end fund offering costs — — 511 4,252 —
Total expense 362,968 333,834 270,038 260,120 149,600
Operating income 170,176 143,038 110,943 79,362 55,873
Non-operating income (expense)
Investment income 11,576 7,734 3,445 1,995 3,117
Interest expense (761) (855) (10,938) (13,347) (20,249)
10,815 6,879 (7,493) (11,352) (17,132)
Income before income taxes 180,991 149,917 103,450 68,010 38,741
Income taxes 73,557 62,556 44,033 32,395 16,655
Net income $107,434 $87,361 $59,417 $35,615 $22.,086
Per share data (unaudited)
Basic earnings $1.67 $1.37 $1.04 $0.67 $0.49
Diluted earnings 1.65 1.35 1.04 0.66 0.49
Book value 7.54 5.75 4.39 1.94 1.00
Market value 41.70 42.00 17.19 — —
Cash dividends declared per common share N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Balance sheet data
Cash and cash equivalents $186,451 $192,590 $157,129 $113,450 $69,085
Investments 139,126 13,316 2,255 2,515 5,915
Intangible assets, net 181,688 192,142 194,257 203,910 213,563
Orther assets 177,213 138,955 93,941 120,909 46,944
Total assets 684,478 537,003 447,582 440,784 335,507
Long-term debt — — 28,200 178,200 206,432
Total liabilities 198,361 168,762 167,056 334,593 290,544
Stockholders’ equity 486,117 368,241 280,526 106,191 44,963
Other financial data (unaudited)
Assets under management (Dollar amounts in miillions)
Separate accounts:
Fixed income $119,488 $103,561 $73,120 $50,933 $38,772
Liquidity 6,831 6,495 7,902 6,423 6,311
Securities lending 10,781 11,501 13,032 7,403 3,708
Equity 9,577 8,716 3,080 2,417 1,763
Alternative investment products 5,309 3,470 2,086 1,936 489
Subtotal 151,986 133,743 99,220 69,112 51,043
Murtual funds:
Fixed income 15,754 13,317 13,318 13,888 13,714
Liquidity 62,141 43,190 36,587 35,555 29,827
Equity 8,703 13,519 15,392 12,087 10,829
Subtotal 86,598 70,026 65,297 61,530 54,370
Total $238,584 $203,769 $164,517 $130,642 $105,413
M) Pursuant to « plan of liquidation, the assets of BAI were sold in 1999 and its business operations terminated.
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiel Condition and Results of Operations—General.” 21

N/A - Not applicable




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

BlackRock, Inc., a Delaware corporation (together, with its
subsidiaries, “BlackRock” or the “Company”), is one of the
largest publicly traded investment management firms in the
United States with approximately $238.6 billion of assets
under management at December 31, 2001. BlackRock man-
ages assets on behalf of insdrutional and individual investors
worldwide through a variety of equity, fixed income, liquid-
ity and alternative investment separate accounts and mutual
funds, including BlackRock Funds and BlackRock Provident
Institutional Funds (“BPIF™). In addition, BlackRock provides
risk management and invesament system services and products
to institutonal investors under the BlackRock Solutions name.
BlackRock is a majority-owned indirect subsidiary of The

PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. (“PNC”), one of the
largest diversified financial services companies in the United
States, operating businesses engaged in regional community
banking, corporate banking, real estate finance, asset-based
lending, wealth management, asset management and global
fund services. On October 1, 1999, BlackRock offered 9 mil-
lion shares of class A common stock in an inital public offer-
ing (“IPO”). As of December 31, 2001, PNC indirectly owns
approximately 70%, the public owns approximately 15% and
BlackRock employees own approximately 15% of BlackRock.

The following table summarizes BlackRock’s operating per-
formance for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year ended

Variance vs.

December 31,

2001 vs. 2000

2000 vs. 1999

(Dollar amounts in thousands,

except sharve data) 2001 2000 1999 Amount % Amount Y
-

Total revenue $533,144 $476,872 $380,981 $56,272 12% $95,891 25%
Total expense $362,968 $333,834 $270,038 $29,134 9% $63,796 24%
Operating income $170,176 $143,038 $110,943 $27,138 19% $32,095 29%
Net income $107,434 $87,361 $59,417 $20,073 23% $27,944 47%
Diluted earnings per share $1.65 $1.35 $1.04 $0.30 22% $0.31 30%
Pro-forma diluted earnings

per share® $1.65 $1.35 $0.99 $0.30 22% $0.36 36%
Diluted cash earnings

per share® $1.82 $1.51 $1.21 $0.31 21% $0.30 25%
Pro-forma diluted cash

earnings per share@ ®) $1.82 $1.51 $1.14 $0.31 21% $0.37 32%
Average diluted shares

outstanding 64,926,199 | 64,590,707 | 57,268,912 335,492 1% 7,321,795 13%
EBITDA® $207,773 $170,767 $132,541 $37,006 22% $38,226 29%
Operating margin® 36.0% 35.7% 36.7%
Assets under management

(Dollar amounts in wmillions) $238,584 $203,769 $164,517 $34,815 17% $39,252 24%

@ Based on adjusting 1999 net income to reflect the after-tax intevest expense benefit of retiving $115 million of debt (net offering proceeds) on October 1, 1999 and adjusting
weighted-average diluted shaves outstunding to veflect the offering of 9 million shares on October 1, 1999.

@ Net incorre plus amortization expense for the period divided by average diluted shaves outstanding.

© Earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

@ Qperating incone divided by total revenue less fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates.

GENERAL

BlackRock derives a substantial portion of its revenue from
investment advisory and administration fees, which are rec-
ognized as the services are performed. Such fees are primar-
ily based on predetermined percentages of the market value
of assets under management and are affected by changes in
assets under management, including market appreciation or
depreciation and net subscriptions or redemptions. Net sub-
scriptions or redemptions represent the sum of new client
assets, additional fundings from existing clients, withdrawals
of assets from and termination of client accounts and pur-
chases and redemptions of mutual fund shares.
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Invesunent advisory agreements for certain separate accounts
and BlackRock’ alternative investment products provide for
performance fees in addition to fees based on assets under
management. Performance fees are earned when investment
performance exceeds a contractual threshold and, accord-
ingly, may increase the volatility of BlackRock’s revenue
and earnings.

BlackRock provides a variety of risk management and tech-
nology services to insurance companies, finance companijes,
pension funds, foundations, REITs, commercial and mortgage
banks, savings institutions and government agencies. These



services are provided under the brand name BlackRock Solutions
and include a wide array of risk management services and
enterprise investment system outsourcing to clients. The fees
earned on risk management advisory assignments are recorded
as other income.

BlackRock Asset Investors (“BAI”) was an alternative invest-
ment product created in 1994 in response to the opportunity
that the Company perceived in the commercial real estate
sector. Due to reduced opportunities to generate appropriate
returns, BATs Board of Trustees and shareholders approved
management’s recommendation in 1997 o liquidate the fund,
which was completed on September 27, 1999. The net impact
to BlackRock’s operating income as a result of the liquidation,
which involved the sale of BAI’s assets, was a loss of $1.7 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 1999,

Operating expense primarily consists of employee compen-
sation and benefits, fund administration and servicing costs-
affiliates, general and administration, and amortization of
intangible assets. Employee compensation and benefits

expense reflects salaries, deferred and incentive compensation
and related benefit costs. BAI incentive compensation expense
reflects compensation earned by investment advisory and
other employees of BlackRock in accordance with various
contractual and other arrangements with PNC and the fund.
Fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates expense
reflects payments made to PNC affiliated entities, primarily
associated with the administration and servicing of PNC
client investments in the BlackRock Funds. Intangible assets at
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000 were $181.7
million and $192.1 million, respectively, with amortization
expense of approximately $10.5 million, $10.2 million and
$9.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. Intangible assets reflect PINC’s acquisi-
don of BlackRock Financial Management, L.P. “BFM L.P.”)
on February 28, 1995 and a management contract acquired in
connection with the agreement and plan of merger of CORE
Cap, Inc. with Anthracite Capital, Inc., a BlackRock managed
REIT, on May 15, 2000.

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Assets under management (“AUM?”) increased $34.8 billion,
or 17%, to $238.6 billion at December 31, 2001, compared
with $203.8 billion at December 31, 2000. The growth in
assets under management was attributable to increases of
$18.2 billion or 14% in separate accounts and $16.6 billion or
24% in mutual fund assets.

The increase in separate accounts at December 31, 2001,
compared with December 31, 2000, was the result of net
subscriptions of $12.0 billion and market appreciation of
$6.2 billion. Net subscriptions in fixed income, equity, alter-
nattve investment products and liquidity accounts were
$8.1 billion, $2.8 billion, $1.6 billion, and $0.2 billion, respec-
tively, while liquidity-securities lending separate account assets
experienced net redemptions of $0.7 billion. The rise in fixed
income, liquidity and alternative investiment products separate
accounts was primarily attributable to strong relative invest-
ment performance resulting in higher levels of funding from
existing clients as well as increased sales to new clients. Fixed
income net subscriptions of $8.1 billion included approxi-
mately $11.0 billion of merger related terminations and mar-
ket rebalancing outflows. The growth in equity separate
account assets primarily reflected new business generated by
the European equity team. The $.7 billion decline in liquidity-
securities lending separate accounts reflects lower levels of
cash collateral managed by BlackRock for PFPC Worldwide,

Inc., a PNC affiliate, associated with the decline in the equity
markets. Market appreciation of $6.2 billion in separate
accounts was comprised of appreciation in fixed income assets
of $7.9 billion due to declining interest rates, partally offset
by market depreciation in equity assets of $1.9 billion.

The $16.6 billion year over year increase in mutual fund
assets reflected net subscriptions of $19.3 billion, which was
partially offset by $2.7 billion of market depreciation in the
BlackRock Funds largely associated with the decline in the
equity markets. Net subscriptions in BPIF, closed-end funds
and BlackRock Funds were $16.8 billion, $1.7 billion and $.6
billion, respectively. The increase in BPIF assets was the
result of strong sales driven in part by the decline in short-
term interest rates and investors’ flight to quality. Manage-
ment does not assume that the current level of BPIF assets will
be sustained as the economy improves and short-term interest
rates stabilize or begin to rise. The increase in closed-end
funds was the result of the Company’s offering of new closed-
end funds, including the BlackRock Municipal Income Trust
(NYSE:BFK), the largest closed-end fund offering in the
market during the year, resulting in incremental assets of
approximately $3.2 billion inclusive of subsequent issuances of
preferred stock, which was partially offset by $2.4 billion in
closed-end term trust maturities.

23



1\4/171/1ge~mcnr’s

December 31,

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Variance %

(Doltar amawnts in millions) 2001 2000 1999 2001 vs. 2000 2000 vs. 1999
All Accounts
Fixed income $135,242 $116,878 $86,438 15.7% 35.2%
Liquidity 79,753 61,186 57,521 30.3 6.4
Equity ’ 18,280 22,235 18,472 (17.8) 20.4
Alternative investment products 5,309 3,470 2,086 53.0 66.3
Total $238,584 $203,769 $164,517 17.1% 23.9%
Separate Accounts
Fixed income $119,488 $103,561 $73,120 15.4% 41.6%
Liquidity 6,831 6,495 7,902 5.2 (17.8)
Liquidity-Securities lending 10,781 11,501 13,032 (6.3) (aLn
Equity 9,577 8,716 3,080 9.9 183.0
Alternative investiment products 5,309 3,470 2,086 53.0 66.3
Subtotal 151,986 133,743 99,220 13.6 34.8
Murcual Funds
Fixed income 15,754 13,317 13,318 18.3 (0.0)
Liquidity 62,141 43,190 36,587 43.9 18.0
Equity 8,703 13,519 15,392 (35.6) (12.2)
Subtotal 86,598 70,026 65,297 23.7 7.2
Total $238,584 $203,769 $164,517 17.1% 23.9%

COMPONENT CHANGES IN ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The following tables present the component changes in
BlackRock’s assets under management for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The data
reflects certain reclassifications to conform with the current

year’s presentation.

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, net
subscriptions were $31.3 billion, $33.0 billion and $32.7 bil-
lion, respectively, and accounted for 90%, 84% and 97% of

the total increase in assets under management.

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar arrounts in millions) 2001 2000 1999
All Accounts

Beginning assets under management $203,769 $164,517 $130,642
Net subscriptions 31,318 33,022 32,716
Market appreciation 3,497 6,230 1,159
Ending assets under management $238,584 $203,769 $164,517
% of Change in AUM from net subscriptions 90.0% 84.1% 96.6%
Separate Accounts

Beginning assets under management $133,743 $99,220 $69,112
Net subscriptions 12,030 25,890 30,183
Market appreciadon (depreciation) 6,213 8,633 (75)
Ending assets under management 151,986 133,743 99,220
Mutual Funds

Beginning assets under management 70,026 65,297 61,530
Net subscriptions 19,288 7,132 2,533
Marker appreciation (depreciation) (2,716) (2,403) 1,234
Ending assets under management 86,598 70,026 65,297
Total $238,584 $203,769 $164,517
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Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Separate Accounts
Fixed Income
Beginning assets under management $103,561 $73,120 $50,933
Net subscriptions 8,071 21,568 23,195
Market appreciation (depreciation) 7,856 8,873 (1,008)
Ending assets under management 119,488 103,561 73,120
Liquidity
Beginning assets under management 6,495 7,902 6,423
Net subscriptions (redemptions) 239 (1,497) 1,432
Market appreciation 97 90 47
Ending assets under management 6,831 06,495 7,902
Liquidity-Securities Lending
Beginning assets under management 11,501 13,032 7,403
Net subscriptions (redemptions) (720) (1,531) 5,629
Ending assets under management 10,781 11,501 13,032
Equity
Beginning assets under management 8,716 3,080 2,417
Net subscriptions (redemptions) 2,752 6,224 (19%)
Market appreciation (depreciation) (1,891) (588) 858
Ending assets under management 9,577 8,716 3,080
Alternative Investment Products
Beginning assets under management 3,470 2,086 1,936
Net subscriptions 1,688 1,126 122
Market appreciation 151 258 28
Ending assets under management 5,309 3,470 2,086
Total Separate Accounts
Beginning assets under management 133,743 99,220 69,112
Net subscriptions 12,030 25,890 30,183
Market appreciation (depreciation) 6,213 8,633 75
Ending assets under management $151,986 $133,743 $99,220
Year ended December 31,
(Dollar awmionnts in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Mutual Funds
Fixed Income
Beginning assets under management $13,317 $13,318 $13,888
Net subscriptions (redemptions) 2,308 671) 246
Market appreciaton (depreciation) 129 670 (816)
Ending assets under management 15,754 13,317 13,318
Liquidity
Beginning assets under management 43,190 36,587 35,555
Net subscriptions 18,951 6,603 1,032
Ending assets under management 62,141 43,190 36,587
Equity
Beginning assets under management 13,519 15,392 12,087
Net subscriptions (redemptions) (1,971) 1,200 1,255
Market appreciation (depreciation) (2,845) (3,073) 2,050
Ending assets under management 8,703 13,519 15,392
Total Mutual Funds
Beginning assets under management 70,026 65,297 61,530
Net subscriptions 19,288 7,132 2,533
Market appreciation (depreciation) 2,716) (2,403) 1,234
Ending assets under management $86,598 $70,026 $65,297
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Mutual Funds

BlackRock Funds

Beginning assets under management $26,359 $27,339 $24,231
Net subscriptions 616 1,834 1,468
Market appreciation (depreciation) (2,780) (2,814) 1,640
Ending assets under management 24,195 26,359 27,339
BlackRock Global Series

Beginning assets under management 75 — —
Net subscriptions 90 72 —
Market appreciation (depreciation) (16) 3 —
Ending assets under management 149 75 —_—
BPIF*

Beginning assets under management 36,338 25,554 25,368
Net subscriptions 16,829 6,688 186
Exchanges — 4,096 —_
Ending assets under management 53,167 36,338 25,554
Closed-End

Beginning assets under management 6,764 7,340 7,756
Net subscriptions (redemptions) 1,668 984) (10
Market appreciation (depreciation) 80 408 (406)
Ending assets under management 8,512 6,764 7,340
Short Term Investment Funds (STIF)*

Beginning assets under management 490 5,064 4,175
Net subscriptions (redemptions) 85 (478) 889
Exchanges — (4,096) —
Ending assets under management 575 490 5,064
Total Mutual Funds

Beginning assets under management 70,026 65,297 61,530
Net subscriptions 19,288 7,132 2,533
Markert appreciation (depreciation) 2,716) (2,403) 1,234
Ending assets under management $86,598 $70,026 $65,297

* During the fourth quarter of 2000, $4.1 billion of STIF assets under management were exchanged into the BPIF produuct.

OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Revenue

Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001
increased $56.3 million or 12% to $533.1 million, compared
with $476.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.
Investment advisory and administration fees increased $42.7
million or 9% to $495.5 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001, compared with $452.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. The growth in investment advi-

sory and administration fees was primarily due to a 17%
increase in assets under management to $238.6 billion at
December 31, 2001 and increased performance fees. Other
income of $37.7 million increased $13.6 million or 56% for
the year ended December 31, 2001, compared with $24.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2000 resulting from
increased sales of BlackRock Solutions products.

Year ended December 31, Variance

(Doliar amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 Amount %
Investment advisory and administration fees:

Mutual funds $217,361 $229,259 ($11,898) (5.2%)

Separate accounts 278,126 223,521 54,605 24.4
Total investment advisory and

administration fees 495,487 452,780 42,707 9.4
Other income 37,657 24,092 13,565 56.3
Total revenue $533,144 $476,872 $56,272 11.8%
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Mutual fund advisory and administration fees decreased $11.9
million or 5% to $217.4 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001, compared with $229.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. The decrease in mutual fund rev-
enue was due to declines in BlackRock Funds fees and closed-
end fund fees of $29.4 million and $3.4 million, respectively,
partially offset by a $21.0 million increase in BPIF and short-
term investment fund revenue. The decrease in BlackRock
Funds revenue was due to a $2.2 billion or 8% decline in
assets with market depreciation in equity assets of $2.8 billion
substantially exceeding net subscriptions of $0.6 billion.
Closed-end fund revenue declined due to $2.4 billion in term
trust maturities, which was partially offset by the Company’s
offering of new closed-end funds during the year. The
increase in BPIF revenue was the result of a $16.8 billion or
46% increase in assets under management due to expanded
marketing efforts, flight to quality considerations and declin-
ing interest rates.

Separate account advisory fees increased $54.6 million or
24% to $278.1 million for the vear ended December 31, 2001,
compared with $223.5 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000. Excluding performance fees, advisory fees on
separate accounts increased $51.4 million or 30% to $222.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared
with $170.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 as
the Company continued to deliver solid invesunent returns
resulting in a2 $18.2 billion or 14% increase in assets under
management. Performance fees of $56.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 increased $3.2 million or 6%,
compared with $52.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2000. Total performance fees for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, largely represents
investment results earned on Obsidian, the Company’s fixed
income hedge fund.

Year ended December 31, Variance

(Dollar amonts in thousands) 2001 2000 Amount %
Mutual funds revenue I
BlackRock Funds $122,476 $151,918 ($29,442) (19.4%)
Closed-end Funds 30,474 33,916 (3,442) (10.1)
BPIF 63,688 39,027 24,661 63.2
STIF 723 4,398 (3,675) (83.6)
Total murtual funds revenue 217,361 229,259 (11,898) (5.2)
Separate accounts revenue
Separate accounts base fees 222,002 170,592 51,410 30.1
Separate accounts performance fees 56,124 52,929 3,195 6.0
Total separate accounts revenue 278,126 223,521 54,605 24.4
Total investment advisory

and administration fees 495 487 452,780 42,707 9.4
Other income 37,657 24,092 13,565 56.3
Total revenue $533,144 $476,872 $56,272 11.8%

Expense

Total expense increased $29.1 million or 9% to $363.0 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared with
$333.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The

change primarily reflects increases in employee compensation
and benefits and general and adminiswation expenses, partially
offset by a decrease in fund administration and servicing
costs-affiliates.

Year ended December 31, Variance

(Dollar arounts in thowsands) 2001 2000 Amount %
Employee compensation and benefits $215,118 $189,684 $25,434 13.4%
Fund administration and

servicing costs-affiliates 60,829 75,686 (14,857) (19.6)
General and administration 76,567 58,311 18,256 31.3
Amortization of intangible assets 10,454 10,153 301 3.0

Total expense $362,968 $333,834 $29,134 8.7%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Employee compensation and benefits increased $25.4 million
primarily due to a $12.2 million increase in incentive com-
pensation based on the growth of operating income and $13.2
million related to salary and benefits. Salary and benefir cost
increases reflected an 11% increase in full-tume employees.
For the year ended December 31, 2001, fund administration
and servicing costs-affiliates declined $14.9 million or 20% as
PINC client investments in the BlackRock Funds declined to

$16.9 billion at December 31, 2001, compared with $19.7
billion at December 31, 2000. General and administration
expenses increased $18.3 million or 31% to $76.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001, compared with $58.3
million for the yvear ended December 31, 2000, largely due to
new business activity, increased headcount and corporate
space and technology investments.

Year ended December 31, Variance

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 Amount %
General and administradon expense:
Marketing and promotional $20,341 $17,897 $2,444 13.7%
Occupancy 12,560 9,707 2,853 29.4
Technology 14,398 9,363 5,035 53.8
Other general and administration 29,268 21,344 7,924 37.1

Total general and administration expense $76,567 $58,311 $18,256 31.3%

Marketing and promotional expenses of $20.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001 increased $2.4 million or 14%
primarily due to higher expenditures related to new products
as well as increased wavel and entertainment costs associated
with the Company’s instdtutional marketing efforts. Occu-~
pancy expense of $12.6 million for the year ended Decem-~
ber 31, 2001 increased $2.9 million due to higher expenses
associated with corporate facility expansion, particularly in
Wilmington, Delaware; Edinburgh, Scodand; 40 East 52nd
Street, New York and Hong Kong. Technology expenses
increased approximately $5.0 million or 54% to $14.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001 as a result of higher
depreciation charges associated with the completion of a
second computer facility in Delaware and capitalized invest-
ments to support the growth of BlackRock Solutions. Other
expense increased $7.9 million or 37% for the year ended
December 31, 2001 primarily due to higher professional ser-
vice costs and sub-advisory fees associated with new products
and increased depreciation on furniture and equipment pur-
chases due to office space expansion and increased headcount.

Operating Income and Net Income

Operating income was $170.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001, representing a $27.1 million or 19%
increase, compared with the year ended December 31, 2000.
Non-operating income increased $3.9 million or 57% to
$10.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, com-
pared with the year ended December 31, 2000. The rise was
due to higher levels of interest and dividend income from
investments of the Company’s available cash. Income tax
expense was $73.6 million and $62.6 million, representing
effective tax rates of 40.6% and 41.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively.
The lower effective income tax rate was primarily a result of
the consolidation of mutual fund activides in Delaware. Net
income totaled $107.4 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001, compared with $87.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000, representing an increase of $20.1 million
or23%.

OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenue

Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000
increased $95.9 million or 25% to $476.9 million, compared
with $381.0 million for the year ended December 31, 1999.
Investinent advisory and administration fees increased $91.1
million or 25% to $452.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000, compared with $361.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 1999. The growth in investment
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advisory and administration fees was primarily due to a 24%
increase in assets under management to $203.8 billion at
December 31, 2000 and increased performance fees. Other
income of $24.1 million increased $4.8 million or 25% for the
year ended December 31, 2000, compared with $19.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 1999 primarily due to
increased sales of BlackRock Solutions products.



Year ended December 31, Variance

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 2000 1999 Amount %
Investment advisory and administration fees:

Mutual funds $229,259 $214,728 $14,531 6.8%

Separate accounts 223,521 154,046 69,475 45.1

BAI revenue — (7,072 7,072 NM
Total investment advisory and administration fees 452,780 361,702 91,078 25.2
Other income 24,092 19,279 4,813 25.0
Total revenue $476,872 $380,981 $95,891 25.2%

NM - Not meaningful

Mutual fund advisory and administration fees increased $14.5
million or 7% to $229.3 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000, compared with $214.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 1999 primarily due to a $4.7 billion or
7% increase in assets under management.

Separate account advisory fees increased $69.5 million or
45% to $223.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2000, compared with $154.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 1999. Excluding performance fees, advisory
fees on separate accounts increased $43.1 million or 34% to

$170.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, com-
pared with $127.5 million for the year ended December 31,
1999 primarily due to a $34.6 billion or 35% increase in
assets under management. Performance fees of $52.9 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2000 increased $26.3
million, compared with $26.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 1999 primarily due to strong investient per-
formance in the Company’s alternative invesument products.
The $7.1 million change in BAT advisory fees was due to the
fund’ liquidation in 1999.

Year ended December 31, Variance
(Dollar amaunts in thousands) 2000 1999 Amount %
Mutual funds revenue
BlackRock Funds $151,918 $142,597 $ 9,321 6.5%
Closed-end Funds 33,916 34,581 (665) (1.9
BPIF 39,027 33,642 5,385 16.0
STIF 4,398 3,908 490 12.5
Total mutual funds revenue 229,259 214,728 14,531 6.8
Separate accounts revenue
Separate base fees 170,592 127,451 43,141 33.8
Separate performance fees 52,929 26,595 26,334 99.0
Total separate accounts revenue 223,521 154,046 69,475 45.1
BAI — (7,072) 7,072 NM
Total investment advisory and administration fees 452,780 361,702 91,078 25.2
Other income 24,092 19,279 4.813 25.0
Total revenue $476,872 $380,981 $95,891 25.2%

NM - Not meaningful

Expense

Total expense increased $63.8 million or 24% to $333.8 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2000, compared with
$270.0 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. The

change primarily reflects increases in employee compensation
and benefits and general and administration expenses, partially
offset by a decrease in fund administration and servicing
costs-affiliates.

Year ended December 31, Variance

(Dollar arrounts in thousands) 2000 1999 Amount %
Employee compensation and benefits $189,684 $138,025 $51,659 37.4%
BAI incentive compensation — (5,387) 5,387 NM
Fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates 75,686 78,666 (2,980) (3.8)
General and administration 58,311 49,081 9,230 18.8
Amortization of intangible assets 10,153 9,653 500 5.2

Total expense $333,834 $270,038 $63,796 23.6%

NM - Not meaningful
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Employee compensation and benefits increased $51.7 million
primarily due to increased incentive compensation of $32.6
million reflecting accruals based on the growth of operating
income and $19.1 million related to salary and benefits. Salary
and benefit cost increases reflected a 15% increase in full-dme
employees to support business growth and $4.2 million of
additional accruals reflecting a determinadon by the Com-
pensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company to increase incentive compensation and related
benefits due to the Company’s strong operating performance.

The change in BAI incentive compensation was due to the
fund’s liquidation in 1999. For the year ended December 31,
2000, fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates
declined $3.0 million or 4% due to lower levels of PNC
client assets invested in the BlackRock Funds. General and
administration expenses increased $9.2 million or 19% to
$58.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, com-
pared with $49.1 million for the year ended December 31,
1999 largely due to new business activity, increased head-
count and corporate space and technology investments.

Year ended December 31, Variance

(Dollar amounts in thausands) 2000 1999 Amount %
General and administration expense:
Marketing and promotional $17,897 $13,578 $4,319 31.8%
Occupancy 9,707 8,022 1,685 21.0
Technology 9,363 7,985 1,378 17.3
Other general and administradon 21,344 19,496 1,848 9.5

Total general and administration expense $58,311 $49,081 $9,230 18.8%

Marketing and promotional expenses of $17.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000 increased $4.3 million or
32% primarily due to higher expenditures related to new
products as well as increased travel and entertainment costs
associated with institutional marketng activides. Occupancy
expense of $9.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2000 increased $1.7 million due to higher expenses associated
with corporate facility expansion. Technology expenses
increased approximately $1.4 million or 17% to $9.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000 as a result of higher
capitalized investments to support the growth of BlackRock
Selutions. Other expense increased $1.8 million or 10% for the
yvear ended December 31, 2000 primarily due to increased
portfolio data and related expenses and office and related
expenses associated with office space expansion.

Operating Income and Net Income

Operating income was $143.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000, representng a $32.1 million or 29%
increase, compared with the year ended December 31, 1999.
Non-operatng income increased $14.4 million to $6.9 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2000, compared with
$7.5 million of non-operating expense for the year ended
December 31, 1999. The significant improvement largely
reflects reduced interest expense associated with the repay-
ment of debt including $115.0 million in net proceeds from
the IPO. In addition, interest income increased $4.3 million
due to additional investunents of the Company’s cash flow
from operations. Income tax expense was $62.6 million and
$44.0 million, representing effective tax rates of 41.7% and
42.6% for the year ended December 31, 2000 and Decem-
ber 31, 1999, respectively. Net income totaled $87.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000, compared with $59.4
million for the year ended December 31, 1999, representing
an increase of $27.9 million or 47%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

BlackRock meets its working capital requirements through
cash generated by its operating activities. Cash provided
by the Company’s operating activities totaled $167.4 mil-~
lion, $108.6 million and $116.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. BlackRock
expects that cash flows provided by operating activides will
continue to serve as the principal source of working capital for
the near future.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $167.1 mil-
lion, $45.7 million and $18.9 million for the years ended

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Capital

expenditures in 2001 for property and equipment was $40.5
million and primarily reflected construction costs for the new
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building in Wilmington, Delaware, leasehold improvements
for the Company’s new headquarters at 40 East 52nd Street,
New York, New York and the purchase of equipment to sup-
port corporate expansion and the growth of BlackRaock Sofu-
tions. Net purchases of investments were $126.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001, which included an $85.0
million investment in the BlackRock Funds Intermediate Bond
Portfolio, a $35.0 million investment in the BlackRock Funds
Core Plus Total Return Portfolio and seed investments made
in certain new alternative investment products.

Net cash flow used in financing activities was $6.2 mil-
lion, $27.1 million and $53.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Financing



activities primarily represented treasury stock activity for the
year ended December 31, 2001. On January 31, 2001 and
October 4, 2001, in connection with the Long-term Deferred
Compensation Plan, BlackRock repurchased approximately
142,000 and 21,000 shares of class A common stock at a fair
market value of $40.33 and $41.70 per share, respectively,
from certain employees to facilitate required employee
income tax payments. On May 2, 2001, BlackRock’s Board of
Directors authorized BlackRock to repurchase up to 500,000
of its outstanding shares of class A common stock from time
to time as market and business conditions warrant in open
market or privately negotiated transacdons. 1o date, BlackRock
has not purchased any shares of its outstanding class A com-
mon stock under this program. On February 29, 2000 and
February 28, 1999, the Company repaid $28.2 million and
$18.8 million, respectvely, on an unsecured note with B.P.
Partners, L.P, an entity comprised of former partners of
BFM, who received deferred notes on February 28, 1995 as part
of the purchase price for BFM. In its [IPO on October 1, 1999,

the Company issued 9 million shares of class A common stock
to the public at an offering price of $14 per share. The pro-
ceeds from the IPO, net of underwriters’ discount and esti-
mated offering expenses, totaled approximately $114.9 million.
These net proceeds were used to retire a portion of BlackRoclk’s
revolving credit facility with PNC Bank, N.A. (“PNC Bank”)
on QOctober 7, 1999, Debt at December 31, 1998 included
$150.0 million outstanding on a $175.0 million revolving
credit facility with PN'C Bank due December 31, 2002, and
$47.0 million on the unsecured note due through February 28,
2000 with B.P. Partners, L.P. Payments on this debt totaled
$0, $28.2 million and $168.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Total capital at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $486.1 mil-
lion and $368.2 million, respectively, and was comprised
entirely of stockholders’ equity. Total capital at December 31,
1999 was $308.7 million and was comprised of $280.5 million
of stockholders’ equity and $28.2 million of debt.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Company leases its primary office space under agree-
ments which expire through 2017. On September 4, 2001, the
Company entered into a lease agreement for additional space
at 40 East 52nd Swreet, New York, New York. Under the lease,
BlackRock occupied this space in January 2002. This lease will
terminate on February 28, 2017. Total rent payments over
the lease term will approximate $24.2 million. Future minimum
commiunents under all operating leases are $172.5 million.

In connection with the management contract acquired asso-
ciated with the agreement and plan of merger of CORE Cap,
Inc. with Anthracite Capital, Inc., a BlackRock managed
REIT, the Company recorded an $8.0 million liability using
an imputed interest rate of 10 percent. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, the related expense was $0.8 million.
At December 31, 2001, the future commitment under the
agreement is $11.0 million.

Summary of Commitments:

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company has an
unused revolving line of credit, due December 2002, with
PNC Bank whereby the Company may borrow principal
amounts up to $175.0 million at prime rate (4.75% at
December 31, 2001).

On January 8, 2001, the Company entered into a commiunent
to invest $8.4 million in Magnetite Asset Investors IIL, L.L.C,,
an alternative investment fund sponsored by BlackRock of
which $1.7 million remained unfunded at December 31, 2001.

On July 20, 2001, the Company entered into a commit-
ment to invest $5.4 million in Carbon Capital, Inc., an alter-
native investment fund sponsored by BlackRock of which
$4.4 million remained unfunded at December 31, 2001. On
February 13, 2002, the Company entered into an additional
commitment of $2.3 million in Carbon Capital, Inc.

(Dollar arnounts in thousands) Total 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter
Lease commitments $172,505 $10,361 $10,439 $10,352 $10,273 $10,450 $120,630
Acquired management contract 11,000 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,000 4,000
Investment commitments 8,000 8,000 — — — — —
Line of credit with PNC — — — — — — —

Total commitments $191,505 $19,861 $11,939 $11,852 $11,773 $11,450 $124,630

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE AND RETENTION PLAN - STATUS

BlackRock and PNC are currently evaluating a new long-term
incentive and retention program for key employees in antic-
ipation of the lapse of all employment agreements and final

vesting of substantially all restricted stock on December 31,
2002. Management’s intention is to finalize and announce a
new program during the first half of 2002. While there are
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numerous program terms and conditions subject to final
agreement, the program is expected to have the following key
attributes:

e Program term of five years.

e Stock option awards which would ratably vest at the end
of years four and five.

* Cash awards (substantially funded by PINC) which could
vest during the last two years subject to BlackRock’s
achievement of certain financial performance targets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant intercompany accounts and transactions between
the consolidated entities have been eliminated. The prepara-
tion of the consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing periods. Actual results could differ from those esti-
mates. Management considers the following accounting poli-
cies critical to an informed review of BlackRock’s consolidated
financial statements. For a summary of additional accounting
policies see Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page 42.

Investments

Investments consist primarily of BlackRock Funds and certain
institutional and private placement portfolios (“alternative
investment products”) and are stated at quoted market values.
Securides which are not readily marketable (alternative invest-
ment products) are stated at their estimated fair market value
as determined by the Company’s management. The resulting
unrealized gains and losses are included in the accumulated
other comprehensive loss component of stockholders’ equity,
net of tax. Realized gains and losses on invesuments and inter-
est and dividend income are included in invesument income
(expense). The Company’s management periodically assesses
impairment on investments to determine if they are other than
temporary. Any impairment on investments are recorded in
earnings.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are comprised of goodwill and management
contract acquired. For each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001, goodwill is amortized on a straight-
line basis over 25 years. Management contract acquired is
amortzed in proportion to and over the period of contract rev-
enue, which is ten years. The Company continually evaluates
the carrying value of intangible assets. Any impairment would
be recognized when the future operating cash flows expected
to be derived from such intangible assets are less than their car-
rying value. In such instances, impairment, if any, is measured
on a discounted future cash flow basis. (See Recent Accounting
Developments, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” below).
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Software Costs

The Company has adopted Statement of Positdon (“SOP”)
98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” SOP 98-1 requires
the capitalization of certain costs incurred in connection with
developing or obtaining software for internal use. Qualifying
software costs are being amortized over an estimated useful
life of three years.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation,” and has adopted the intrinsic value method
for all arrangements under which employees receive shares of
stock or other equity instruments of the employer or the
employer incurs liabilities to employees in amounts based on
the price of its stock. Fair value disclosures are included in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to
account for its 1999 Stock Award and Incentive Plan (the
“Award Plan”) and shares issued under the BlackRock, Inc.
2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,” and adopt the disclosure only provi-
sions of SFAS No. 123.

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory and administraton fees are recognized as
the services are performed. Such fees are primarily based on
predetermined percentages of the market values of the assets
under management. Investment advisory and administration
fees for mutual funds are shown net of fees waived pursuant
to expense limitations.

The Company also receives performance fees or an incentive
allocation from alternative investment products and certain
separate accounts. These performance fees are earned upon
attaining specified investnent return thresholds. Such fees are
recorded as earned. Should the alternatve investment products
and separate accounts subject to performance fees not condnue
to meet specified investment return thresholds, performance
fees and related employee compensation expense previously
recorded may be subject to reversal. At December 31, 2001,
no performance fees recorded by the Company are subject
to reversal.



BlackRock provides a variety of risk management and tech-
nology services to insurance companies, finance companies,
pension funds, REITS, commercial and mortgage banks, sav-
ings institutions and government agencies. These services
are provided under the brand name BlackRock Solutions and
include a wide array of risk management services and enter-
prise investment system outsourcing to clients. The fees
earned on risk management advisory assignments are
recorded as other income.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Comunission
(“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.” SAB No. 101
provides guidance on applying generally accepted accounting

principles to revenue recognition issues in financial state-
ments. The Company adopted SAB No. 101 as required in
the first quarter of 2000. The adoption of SAB No. 101 did
not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
results of operations and financial position.

Accounting for Off-Balance Sheet Activities

BlackRock has equity interests in collateralized bond obliga-
tions (“CBQO”), which are reflected in investments, available
for sale in the accompanying consolidated statements of finan-
ctal condition. These investments are periodically assessed to
determine whether the underlying assets and liabilities should
be consolidated. See “Off-Balance Sheet Activities.”

RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

a) Business Combinations

On July 20, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Busi-
ness Combinations.” SFAS No. 141 requires the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations
initiated or completed after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting. The statement
also addresses disclosure requirements for business combina-
tions and initial recognition and measurement criteria for
goodwill and other intangible assets as a result of purchase
business combinations.

b) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

On July 20, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” which changes the accounting
for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-
only approach. The amortzaton of goodwill, including good-
will recognized relating to past business combinations, will
cease upon adoption of the new standard. Impairment testing
for goodwill at a reporting unit level will be required on at
least an annual basis. The new standard also addresses other
accounting matters, disclosure requirements and financial
statement presentation issues relating to goodwill and other
intangible assets. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 on
January 1, 2002, as required. Assuming no impairment adjust-
ments are necessary, no future business combinatons and
no other changes to goodwill, the Company expects diluted
earnings per share to increase by approximately $.08 per share
in 2002 resulting from the cessation of goodwill amortization.

o) Accounting for Obligations Associated with the Retivernent of
Long-Lived Assets

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting
for Obligations Associated with the Retirement of Long-
Lived Assets,” which requires that the fair value of a liability
be recognized when incurred for the redrement of a long-
lived asset and the value of the asset be increased by that
amount. The statement also requires that the liability be
maintained at its present value in subsequent periods and
outlines certain disclosures for such obligations. The adopton
of this statement, which is effective January 1, 2003, is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s finan-
cial statements.

d) Accounting for the Impairment ov Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Account-
ing for the Impairment or Disposal of Loong-Lived Assets,”
which replaces SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Assets to be
Disposed of.” This statement primarily defines one account-
ing model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale,
including discontinued operations and addresses implemen-
tation issues. The adoption of this statement, which is effec-
tive January 1, 2002, is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide
investment advisory and administration services to the

BlackRock Funds, BPIF, the BlackRock Closed-end Funds and
other commingled funds.
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Revenues for services provided to these mutual funds are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollav arrounes in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Investment advisory and administration fees: _

BlackRock Open-end Funds $122,476 $151,918 $142,597

BlackRock Closed-end Funds 30,474 33,916 34,581

BlackRock Provident Institutional Funds* 63,688 39,027 33,642

Commingled Funds 723 4,398 3,908
$217,361 $229,259 $214,728

* Includes the International Dollur- Reserve Fund I, Led., a Caynran Islands open-ended limited liability company.

The Company provides investment advisory and adminis-
tration services to certain PNC subsidiaries for a fee, based on

Revenues for such services are as follows:

assets under management. In addition, the Company provides
risk management and model portfolio services to PINC.

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar armounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Investment advisory and administration fees:

Separate accounts $11,187 $9,703 $8,436

Model Portfolio Services 4,400 4,400 4,400

Other income-risk management 5,000 5,000 5,000

Fixed income trading services 1,125 1,125 281
$21,712 $20,228 $18,117

The Company has entered into various memoranda of under-
standing and co-administration agreements with affiliates of
PINC pursuant to which the Company pays administration
fees for BPIF and certain other commingled funds and service
fees for PNC Advisors’ (PINC’s wealth management business)
clients invested in the BlackRock Funds.

The Company incurred interest expense to related parties in
connection with the 7.5% unsecured note with B.P. Partners,

L.P, an entity controlled by former partners of BEM, L.P,
and the revolving line of credit with PNC Bank. PINC also
provides general and administraton services to the Company.
Charges for such services were based on actual usage or on
defined formulas which, in management’s view, resulted in
reasonable allocations. Aggregate expenses included in the
consolidated financial staternents for transactions with related
parties are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollur amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Fund administradon and servicing costs-affiliates $60,829 $75,686 $78,666
General and administration 6,728 7,617 7,622
General and administration-consulting 1,270 142 —
Interest expense-affiliates — 353 10,938

$68,827 $83,798 $97,226

Additonally, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PNC
acts as a financial intermediary associated with the sale
of back-end loaded shares of certain BlackRock funds. This
entity finances broker sales commissions and receives all asso-
ciated sales charges.

Payable to affiliates was $15,972 and $14,750 at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively. These amounts primarily repre-
sent income taxes payable and fund administration and
servicing costs-affiliates payable. These amounts do not
bear interest.
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In connection with the Company’s investment advisory ser-
vices provided to PINC subsidiaries and affiliates, BlackRock’s
receivable from PNC was $3,653 and $1,650 at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

Receivable from affiliates was approximately $4,137 and
$1,484 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
amount primarily represents a receivable for administration
fees earned in connection with services provided to the
BlackRock Closed-end Funds and Anthracite Capital, Inc.



OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES

As an invesunent manager of alternatve and traditonal invest-
ment products, the Company has investments in and/or may
provide investment management, advisory or administrative
services to funds and other investmment companies organized
as limited liability companies (“LLC”), corporations or busi-
ness trusts.

Specifically, BlackRock acts as the collateral manager for four
CBO funds organized as corporations or limited liability
companies. At December 31, 2001, aggregate assets and debt
in the CBO’ approximated $1.8 billion and $1.6 billion,
respectively. BlackRock’s equity ownership was approximately
$14.7 million at December 31, 2001.

BlackRock serves as the investment manager for two fixed
income hedge funds (“Obsidian Funds”) that engage in the

trading of fixed income securities through both a LLC and
corporate structure. BlackRock serves as the managing mem-
ber for the LL.C which had total assets and liabilities of
approximately $9.8 billion and $9.3 billion, respectively.
BlackRock’s equity ownership was approximately $0.2 million
at December 31, 2001.

Under current accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, the Company has not consolidated the CBO’s
or Obsidian because non-affiliated parties have sufficient
equity ownership and BlackRock has not guaranteed any of
their obligations nor is it contractually liable for any of their
obligadons. Accordingly, the statements of financial conditon
and results of operations of the CBO’ and the LLC are not
included in BlackRock’s financial statements with the excep-
don of BlackRock’s equity ownership.

INTEREST RATES

The value of assets under management is affected by changes
in interest rates. Since BlackRock derives the majority of its
revenues from investment advisory fees based on the value of
assets under management, BlackRock’s revenues may be

adversely affected by changing interest rates. In a period of
rapidly rising interest rates, BlackRock’s assets under man-
agement would likely be negatively affected by reduced asset
values and increased redemptions.

INFLATION

The majority of BlackRock’s revenues are based on the value
of assets under management. There is no predictable rela-
tionship between the rate of inflation and the value of assets
under management by BlackRock, except as inflation may
affect interest rates. BlackRock does not believe inflation will
significantly affect its compensation costs, as they are sub-
standally variable in nature. However, the rate of inflation may

affect BlackRock’s expenses such as information technology
and occupancy costs. To the extent inflation results in rising
interest rates and has other effects upon the securites markets,
it may adversely affect BlackRock’s results of operations by
reducing BlackRock’s assets under management, revenues or
otherwise.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and other documents filed by BlackRock include
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act with respect to BlackRock’s
outook for earnings and revenues and other future financial
or business performance, strategies or expectations. Forward-
looking statements are typically identfied by words or phrases
such as “believe,” “expect,
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anticipate,” “intend,” “esumate,”

3

“position,” “target,” “mission,” “assume,” “achievable,”
“potential,” “strategy,” “goal,” “objective,” “plan,” “aspira-
tion,” “outlook,” “outcome,” “continue,” “remain,” “main-

7@

tain,” “strive,” “trend,” and variations of such words and similar
expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,”

”

“would,” “should,” “could,” “may,” or similar expressions.

BlackRock cautions that forward-looking statements are sub-
ject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertaintes, which
change over time. Forward-looking statements speak only as
of the date they are made, and BlackRock assumes no duty to

update forward-looking statements. Actual results could dif-
fer materially from those anticipated in forward-looking state-
ments and future results could differ materially from historical
performance.

In addition to factors previously disclosed in BlackRock’s
SEC reports and those identified elsewhere in this report, the
following factors, among others, could cause actual results to
differ materially from forward-looking statements or histor-
ical performance: (1) the introduction, withdrawal, success and
timing of business initiatives and strategies; (2) changes in
political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate
environment or financial and capital markets, which could
result in reduced demand for products or services or reduced
value of assets under management or of investments; (3) the
reladve investment performance of BlackRock’s advised or
sponsored investment products and separately managed
accounts; (4) the impact of increased competition; (5) the
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impact of capital improvement projects; (6) the impact of
furure acquisitions; (7) the unfavorable resolution of legal
proceedings; (8) the extent and dming of any share repur-
chases; (9) the impact, extent and timing of technological
changes and the adequacy of intellectual property protection;

(10) the impact of legisladve and regulatory actions and reforms;
and (11) terrorist activities, including the September 11th ter-
rorist attacks, which may adversely affect the general economy,
financial and capital markets, specific industries, and BlackRock.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected quarterly financial data for 2001 and 2000. The data presented should be read in con-
junction with the consoclidated financial statements of BlackRock and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Results

of Operations” included herein.

*Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and antortization.
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Quarter
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data) Ist 2nd 3rd 4th Total
2001
Revenue $133,709 $135,262 $134,782 $129,391 $533,144
Operating income 41,920 42,708 42,532 43,016 170,176
Net income 25,496 26,230 27,376 28,332 107,434
" EBITDA* $49,531 $51,722 $52,190 $54,330 $207,773

Earnings per share:

Basic $0.40 $0.41 $0.43 $0.44 $1.67

Diluted $0.39 $0.40 $0.42 $0.44 $1.65
Weighted-average shares outstanding:

Basic 64,159,248 | 64,248,630| 64,284,768 64,390,814 64,271,538

Diluted 64,897,486 | 64,877,389 64,947,840 65,050,738 64,926,199
Common stock price per share:

High $44.00 $37.77 $44.50 $44.40 $44.50

Low $31.25 $30.76 $34.01 $37.46 $30.76

Close $36.00 $34.29 $44.22 $41.70 $41.70
2000
Revenue $108,060 $112,571 $127,701 $128,540 $476,872
Operating income 32,118 34,322 36,926 39,672 143,038
Net income 19,197 20,857 22,761 24,546 87,361
EBITDA* $37,801 $40,641 $44,580 $47,745 $170,767
Earnings per share:

Basic $0.30 $0.33 $0.36 $0.38 $1.37

Diluted $0.30 $0.32 $0.35 $0.38 $1.35
Weighted-average shares outstanding:

Basic 63,864,382 63,865,770 63,884,410 63,930,387 63,886,353

Diluted 64,342,592 64,492,447 64,651,300 64,727,763 64,590,707
Common stock price per share:

High $25.00 $36.00 $42.63 $48.00 $48.00

Low $15.00 $20.25 $28.31 $31.88 $15.00

Close $20.25 $29.00 $32.00 $42.00 $42.00




REPORTS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s Responsibility
for Financial Reporting

BlackRock, Inc. is responsible for the preparation, quality
and fajr presentation of its published financial statements.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States and, as such, include
judgments and esdmates of management. BlackRock, Inc.,
also prepared the other information included in the Annual
Report and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency
with the consolidated financial statements.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting. The inter-
nal control system is augmented by written policies and pro-
cedures and by audits performed by an internal audit staff
which reports to the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors. Internal auditors test the operation of the internal
control system and report findings to management and the
Audit Committee, and corrective actions are taken to address
identified control deficiencies and other opportunities
for improving the system. The Audit Committee, composed
solely of outside directors, provides oversight to the financial
reporting process.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any
system of internal control, including the possibility of
human error and circumventon or overriding of controls.
Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the
effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed BlackRock, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2001. Based on this
assessment management believes that BlackRock, Inc. main-
tained an effective internal control system over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2001.

o] (it

Paul L. Auder
Chief Financial Officer

Laurence D. Fink
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and . Stockholders
BlackRock, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements
of financial condition of BlackRock, Inc. as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the consolidated statements of income,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of BlackRock, Inc. at December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

St + LLP

New York, New York
Fanuary 31, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31,

(Dollar anounts in thousands) 2001 2000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $186,451 $192,590
Accounts receivable 92,522 81,800
Invesunents, available for sale (cost: $143,600

and $16,854, respectively) 139,126 13,316
Property and equipment, net 70,510 45,598
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization

of $67,222 and $56,768, respectively) 181,688 192,142
Receivable from affiliates 4,137 1,484
Other assets 10,044 10,073

Total assets $684,478 $537,003
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Accrued compensation $146,019 $130,101
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Affiliate 15,972 14,750

Other 19,075 12,264
Acquired management contract obligation 7,344 8,040
Other liabilities 9,951 3,607

Total liabilites 198,361 168,762
Stockholders’ equity
Commeon stock, class A, 15,916,944 and 9,487,297 shares issued, respectively 159 95
Common stock, class B, 48,674,607 and 54,509,875 shares issued, respectively 487 545
Additional paid-in capital 184,041 172,156
Retained earnings 307,498 200,064
Unearned compensation (1,927) 2,126)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 3,537) (2,477)
Treasury stock, class A, at cost

0 and 353 shares issued, respectively — (16)
Treasury stock, class B, at cost

125,633 and 0 shares issued, respectvely (604) —

Total stockholders’ equity 486,117 368,241
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $684,478 $537,003

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share data) 2001 2000 1999
Revenue
Investment advisory and administration fees

Mutual funds $217,361 $229,259 $214,728

Separate accounts 278,126 223,521 154,046

BAI — — (7,072)
Other income

Affiliate 5,000 5,000 5,000

Other 32,657 19,092 14,279
Total revenue 533,144 476,872 380,981
Expense
Employee compensation and benefits 215,118 189,684 138,025
BAI incentive compensation — — (5,387)
Fund administration and servicing costs — affiliates 60,829 75,686 78,666
General and administration

Affiliates 7,998 7,759 7,622

Other 68,569 50,552 40,948
Amortization of intangible assets 10,454 10,153 9,653
Closed-end fund offering costs — — 511
Total expense 362,968 333,834 270,038
Operating income 170,176 143,038 110,943
Non-operating income (expense)
Investment income 11,576 7,734 3,445
Interest expense (761) (855) (10,938)
Total non-operating income (expense) 10,815 6,879 (7,493)
Income before income taxes 180,991 149,917 103,450
Income taxes 73,557 62,556 44,033
Net income $107,434 $87,361 $59,417
Earnings per share

Basic $1.67 $1.37 $1.04

Diluted $1.65 $1.35 $1.04
Weighted-average shares outstanding

Basic 64,271,538 63,886,353 57,057,014

Diluted 64,926,199 64,590,707 57,268,912

See acconzpanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES
IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Year ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Accumulated

Other N N
Comnon Stock Additional Unearned Compre- Treasury Stock "Fotal
Class Class Paid-In Retained Compen- hensive Class Class Stockholders’

(Dollar amonnes ine thousands) A B Capital Earnings sation Loss A B Equity
December 31, 1998 $—| $549 | $52,556 | $53,286 $r $— | $— | ($200)| $106,191
Net income — — — 59,417 —_— — — . 59,417
Purchase of treasury stock — — — — — — — (550) (550)
Sale of treasury stock _ — 2,239 —_ (2,239 — — 750 750
Issuance of class A

common stock, net 90 — 114,759 — — — —_ _ 114,849
Amortization of discount

on issuance of

class B common stock —_ — —_ —_ 100 — —_ —_ 100
Unrealized loss

on investments, net — — — —_— —_ 231) — — (231)
December 31, 1999 90 549 169,554 112,703 2,139 231 — —_ 280,526
Net income — — — 87,361 —_ —_ —_— —_— 87,361
Purchase of

treasury stock — — — — — — (16) — (16)
Conversion of class B

common stock to

class A common stock 5 (5 — — — — — — —
Issuance of shares to

Nonemployee Directors — — 111 — — — — — 111
Proceeds from issuance of

class A common stock — — 222 — — — —_— — 222
Expenses from issuance of

class A common stock, net — — 91) — — — — — 91)
Issuance of

class B common stock — 1 1,008 — (744) — — — 265
Amortization of discount

on issuance of

class B common stock — — — — 757 — — — 757
Stock options exercised — — 742 — — — — — 742
Tax benefit from

stock options exercised — — 610 — — — — — 610
Foreign currency

translation loss — — —_ — — (408) — — (408)
Unrealized loss

on investments, net _— —_— —_ —_ — (1,838) —_ — (1,838)
December 31, 2000 95 545 172,156 200,064 (2,126) 4770 (16) — 368,241
Net income — — — 107,434 — — — —_— 107,434
Conversion of class B

common stock to

class A common stock 56 (56) — — — — — — —
Issuance of

class A common stock 6 —_ 8,817 — -— —_ — — 8,823
Issuance of

class B common stock — — 502 — (206) — — — 296
Amortization of discount

on issuance of

class B common stock — — — — 1,100 — — — 1,100
Treasury stock transactions 2 ) (3,063) _— (695) — 16 604) (4,346)
Tax benefit from

stock options exercised — — 5,629 — —_— — — — 5,629
Foreign currency

translation loss — — — —_— —_— (294) — — (294)
Unrealized loss on

investments, net — — — — — (766) — — (766)
December 31, 2001 $159| $487 | $184,041 | $307,498 ($1,927)] ($3,537)] $— | ($604)| $486,117

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31,

2000

(Dollar amounts in thotsands) 2001 1999
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $107,434 $87.,361 $59,417
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 26,021 19,995 18,153
Stock-based compensation 4,483 868 100
Deferred income taxes (8,460) (2,318) (6,827)
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 5,629 610 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (10,722) (18,074) 42,484
(Increase) decrease in receivable from affiliate (2,653) 627 (1,665)
Decrease (increase) in other assets 29 (4,646) (3,426)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensation 22,775 39,751 (19,979)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 16,493 (14,618) 26,672
Decrease in accrued interest payable to affiliates — (705) “70)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 6,344 (244) 1,867
Cash provided by operating activities 167,373 108,607 116,326
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (40,479) (32,761) (18,925)
(Purchase) sale of investments (126,576) (12,899) 29
Cash used in investing activities (167,055) (45,660) (18,896)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of note and loan payable to affiliates —_ (28,200) (168,800)
Issuance of class A common stock 1,199 873 114,849
Issuance of class B common stock 296 265 —
Purchase of treasury stock (7,407) (16) (550)
Reissuance of treasury stock 445 — 750
Acquired management contract obligation payment (696) — —
Cash used in financing activities (6,163) (27,078) (53,751)
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents (294) 408) —
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,139) 35,461 43,679
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 192,590 157,129 113,450
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $186,451 $192,590 $157,129

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share datra)

BUSINESS

BlackRock, Inc. (together, with its subsidiaries, “BlackRock”
or the “Company”) provides diversified investment manage-
ment services to institutional clients, including certain sub-
sidiaries and affiliates of The PNNC Financial Services Group,
Inc. (“PNC”), and to individual investors through various
invesument vehicles. Instdrudonal investment management
services primarily consists of the active management of fixed
income, equity and liquidity client accounts and the manage-
ment of the BlackRock Provident Institutional Funds (“BPIF”),
a money market mutual fund family serving the instdtutional
market. Individual investor services primarily consists of the
management of the Company’s sponsored open-end and
closed-end mutual funds (“BlackRock Funds”). BlackRock

Advisors, Inc. (“BA”), BlackRock Institutional Management
Corporation (“BIMC”), BlackRock Financial Management,
Inc. (“BFM”), BlackRock International, Led. (“BI”) and
BlackRock Capital Management (“BCM”), are registered
investrnent advisers under the Invesament Advisers Act of 1940
while BlackRock Invesuments, Inc. (“BII”) is a registered
broker dealer.

Basis of Presentation

BlackRock is indirectly majority owned by PNC. The con-
solidated financial statements of BlackRock include the
assets, liabilities and earnings of its wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries BA, BIMC, BFM, BI, BCM, BII, BlackRock
Funding, Inc., BlackRock Asia, Ltd. and their subsidiaries.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

Significant intercompany accounts and transactions between
the consolidated entities have been eliminated. The prepara-
don of the consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assump-
dons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilides at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term,
highly liquid invesuments with original maturities of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are held at major
financial institutions and in money market mutual funds, in
which the Company is exposed to market and credit risk.

Investments

Investments consist primarily of BlackRock Funds and certain
institudonal and private placement portfolios (“alternative
invesunent products”) and are stated at quoted market values.
Securides which are not readily marketable (alternatve invest-
ment products) are stated at their estimated fair market value
as determined by the Company’s management. The resuldng
unrealized gains and losses are included in the accumulated
other comprehensive loss component of stockholders’ equity,
net of tax. Realized gains and losses on investnents and inter-
est and dividend income are included in investment income
(expense). The Company’s management periodically assesses
impairment on investments to determine if they are other
than temporary. Any impairment on investments are recorded
in earnings.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation generally is provided on the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the various
classes of property and equipment. Accelerated methods are
used for income tax purposes. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives or lease terms, whichever is shorter.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are comprised of goodwill and management
contract acquired. For each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001, goodwill is amortized on a
straight-line basis over 25 years. Management contract
acquired is amortized in proporton to and over the period of
contract revenue, which is ten years. The Company continu-
ally evaluates the carrying value of intangible assets. Any
impairment would be recognized when the future operating
cash flows expected to be derived from such intangible assets
are less than their carrying value. In such instances, impair-
ment, if any, is measured on a discounted future cash flow
basis. (See Recent Accounting Developments, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” below).

Software Costs

The Company has adopted Statement of Position (“SOP”)
98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” SOP 98-1
requires the capirtalization of certain costs incurred in con-
nection with developing or obtaining software for internal
use. Qualifying software costs of approximately $5,100 and
$5,200 have been capitalized for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and are being amortized
over an estimated useful life of three years.



Stock-based Compensation

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123 and has adopted the intrinsic
value method for all arrangements under which employees
receive shares of stock or other equity instruments of
the employer or the employer incurs liabilities to employees
in amounts based on the price of its stock. Fair value dis-
closures are included in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation,” the Company has elected to account for its
1999 Stock Award and Incendve Plan (the “Award Plan”) and
shares issued under the BlackRock, Inc. 2001 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) under Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. (“APB”) 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,” and adopt the disclosure only provi-
sions of SFAS No. 123.

Treasury Stock

The Company records common stock purchased for treasury
at cost. At the date of subsequent reissue, the treasury stock
account is reduced by the cost of such stock on the first-in,
first-out basis.

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory and administration fees are recognized
as the services are performed. Such fees are primarily based
on predetermined percentages of the market values of the
assets under management. Invesanent advisory and adminis-
traton fees for mutual funds are shown net of fees waived
pursuant to expense limitations.

The Company also receives performance fees or an incentive
allocadon from alternative investment products and certain
separate accounts. These performance fees are earned upon
attaining specified investment return thresholds. Such fees
are recorded as earned. Should the alternative investment
products and separate accounts subject to performance fees
not contnue to meet specified investment return thresholds,
performance fees and related employee compensation
expense previously recorded may be subject to reversal. At
December 31, 2001, no performance fees recorded by the
Company are subject to reversal.

BlackRock provides a variety of risk management and tech-
nology services to insurance companies, finance companies,
pension funds, REITs, commercial and mortgage banks,
savings institutions and government agencies. These ser-
vices are provided under the brand name BlackRock Solutions
and include a wide array of risk management services and
enterprise investment system outsourcing to clients. The fees
earned on risk management advisory assignments are
recorded as other income.

In December 1999, the Securides and Exchange Commission
issued Staff Accoundng Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.” SAB No. 101 provides
guidance on applying generally accepted accounting princi-
ples to revenue recognidon issues in financial statements.
The Company adopted SAB No. 101 as required in the first
quarter of 2000. The adoption of SAB No. 101 did not have

a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results of
operations and financial position.

Administration and Servicing Costs

In connection with mutual funds advised by the Company,
certain administration and servicing costs are expensed as
incurred.

Comprehensive Income

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income.” SFAS No. 130 requires that all
changes in equity except those resulting from investments by
shareholders and distributions to shareholders be included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Com-
prehensive income has been presented to conform to SFAS
No. 130 requirements.

Earnings Per Share

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per
Share.” Basic earnings per common share is calculated by
dividing net income applicable to common stockholders by
the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share is com-
puted by dividing net income by the total weighted average
number of shares of common stock ocutstanding and commmon
stock equivalents. Diluted earnings per share is computed
using the treasury stock method.

Business Segments

The Company has not presented business segment data in
accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure About Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information,” because it oper-
ates predominantly in one business segment, the investment
advisory and asset management business.

Disclosure of Fair Value

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments,”
certain on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments. The
methods and assumptions are set forth below:

requires disclosure of estimated fair values of

e Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other assets,
accounts payable and accrued liabilides approximate fair
value due to the short maturities.

e The fair value of investments is based on quoted market
values. If securities are not readily marketable (alternative
investment products), values are stated at their estimated
fair value as determined by the Company’s management.

e At December 31, 2001, the estmated fair value of the
acquired management contract obligation based on cur-
rent rates offered to the Company for debt with a similar
remaining maturity was approximately $8,091.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In 1998, the Financial Accounung Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instru-
ments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No.
137 and No. 138. SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenzents continued

reporting standards for derivative instruments, including cer-
tain derivadves embedded in other contracts and for hedging
activities. SFAS No. 133 generally requires an entity to rec-
ognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the srate-
ment of financial position and measure those investiments at
fair value. The Company adopted the new statement as of
January 1, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 has not had
a material impact on the Company’s results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows. The Company had no out-
standing derivatve positions as of December 31, 2001.

Accounting for Off-Balance Sheet Activities

BlackRock has equity interests in collateralized bond obliga-
dons, which are reflected in investments, available for sale
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition. These investments are periodically assessed to
determine whether the underlying assets and liabilides
should be consolidated.

Reclassification of Prior Periods’ Statements

Certain items previously reported have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Recent Accounting Developments
a) Business Combinations

On July 20, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141 requires the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations
inidated or completed after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting. The statement
also addresses disclosure requirements for business combina-
dons and initial recogniton and measurement criteria for
goodwill and other intangible assets as a result of purchase
business combinations.

&) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

On July 20, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” which changes the account-

ing for goodwill from an amortization method to an
impairment-only approach. The amortization of goodwill,
including goodwill recognized relating to past business
combinations, will cease upon adoption of the new standard.
Impairment testing for goodwill at a reporting unit level will
be required on at least an annual basis. The new standard also
addresses other accountng matters, disclosure requirements
and financial statement presentation issues relating to good-
will and other intangible assets. The Company will adopt
SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002, as required.
Assuming no impairment adjusuments are necessary, no
future business combinations, and no other changes to good-
will, the Company expects diluted earnings per share to
increase by approximately $.08 per share in 2002 resultdng
from the cessation of goodwill amortization.

¢) Accounting for Obligations Associated with the Retirement of
Long-Lived Assets

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accountng
for Obligations Associated with the Retirement of Long-
Lived Assets,” which requires that the fair value of a liability
be recognized when incurred for the redrement of a long-
lived asset and the value of the asset be increased by that amount.
The staterment also requires that the liability be maintained
atits present value in subsequent periods and outlines certain
disclosures for such obligations. The adoption of this state-
ment, which is effective January 1, 2003, is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

d) Accounting for the Inmpaivment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” which replaces SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Assets to be
Disposed of.” This statement primarily defines one account-
ing model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale,
including discontinued operations and addresses implemen-
tation issues. The adoption of this statement, which is effec-
tve January 1, 2002, is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

2. INVESTMENTS, AVAILABLE FOR SALE

A summary of the cost and fair market value of investments, available for sale, is as follows:

(Dollar arnounts in thousands)

Gross Unrealized

Fair Market
December 31, 2001 Cost Gains Losses Value
Murtual funds $129,304 $— $1,882 $127,422
Collateralized bond obligatons 12,689 — 2,607 10,082
Other 1,607 15 — 1,622
$143,600 $15 $4,489 $139,126

December 31, 2000
Mutual funds $8,823 $— $633 $8,190
Collateralized bond obligations 5,956 — 2,857 3,099
Other 2,075 — 43 2,027
$16,854 $— $3,538 $13,316
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BlackRock acts as investment advisor to all of these invest-
ments. Net realized gains on the sale of investments, avail-

able for sale, totaled $188, $11 and $8 for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

Estimated useful

December 31,

Dollar amounts in thousands) life — in years 2001 2000
Land N/A $3,564 $3,564
Building 39 16,946 —
Building improvements 15 5,286 —
Equipment and computer software 3-5 54,388 37,157
Leasehold improvements 2-17 8,721 9,361
Furniture and fixtures 7 12,712 7,262
Construction in progress N/A 14,979 19,826

116,596 77,170
Less accumulated depreciation 46,086 31,572
Property and equipment, net $70,510 $45,598

N/A - Not applicable

Building and building improvements reflect the new building
located in Wilmington, Delaware. The remaining balance in
the construction in progress account primarily represents
expenditures associated with occupying a new headquarters
site in New York City located at 40 East 52nd Street.

Depreciation expense was approximately $15,567, $9,842
and $8,500 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

a) Goodwill

The consolidated financial statements reflect the results of
operations of the former BlackRock Financial Management,
L.P. and BFM Advisory L.P.,, which were acquired by PNC
on February 28, 1995. Goodwill recognized at acquisition
approximated $240,000 and is being amortized on a straight-
line basis over 25 years.

b) Management Contract Acquired

On May 15, 2000, BlackRock entered into a contract in con-~
necton with the agreement and plan of merger of CORE Cap,

Inc. with Anthracite Capital, Inc.,, a BlackRock managed
REIT. This agreement assigns the managerial rights and
duties of CORE Cap, Inc.s former manager to BlackRock for
consideradon in the amount of $12,500 o be paid by
BlackRock over a ten-year period. The present value of the
acquired contract using an imputed interest rate of 10 percent
was $8,040 on the date of acquisition. This amount is recorded
as an intangible asset and is being amortized on a straight-line
basis over ten years.

5. COMMITMENTS

a) Lease Commitients

The Company leases its primary office space under agree~
ments which expire through 2017. On September 4, 2001,
the Company entered into a lease agreement for additional
space at 40 East 52nd Street, New York, New York. Under
the lease, BlackRock will occupy this space on or about
January 2002. The lease will terminate on February 28,
2017. Total rent payments over the lease term will approxi-
mate $24,198. Future minimum commitments under these

operating leases, net of rental reimbursements of $5,884
through 2005 from a sublease arrangement, are as follows:

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2002 $10,361
2003 10,439
2004 10,352
2005 10,273
2006 10,450
Thereafter 120,630

$172,505
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In connection with certain lease agreements, the Company is
responsible for escalation payments.

Occupancy expense amounted 6 $12,559, $9,707 and $8,022
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.

b) Acquived Management Contract Obligation

In connecton with the management contract acquired asso-
ciated with the agreement and plan of merger of CORE Cap,
Inc. with Anthracite Capital, Inc., a BlackRock managed
REIT, the Company recorded an $8,040 liability using an
imputed interest rate of 10 percent. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, the related expense was $761. At Decem-
ber 31, 2001, the future commitment under the agreement is
as follows:

(Doliar amounts in thousands)

2002 $1,500
2003 1,500
2004 1,500
2005 1,500
2006 1,000
Thereafter 4,000

11,000
Less: imputed interest 3,656

Present value of management contract $7,344

o) Unused Line of Credit

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company has an
unused revolving line of credit, due December 2002, with
PNC Bank, N.A. (“PNC Bank”) whereby the Company may
borrow principal amounts up to $175,000 at prime rate
(4.75% at December 31, 2001).

d) Other

On January 8, 2001, the Company entered into a commit-
ment to invest $8,400 in Magnetite Asset Investors III,
L.L.C., an alternative investment fund sponsored by
BlackRock of which $1,700 remained unfunded at Decem-
ber 31, 2001.

On July 20, 2001, the Company entered into a commiunent
to invest $5,400 in Carbon Capital, Inc., an alternative
investment fund sponsored by BlackRock of which $4,400
remained unfunded at December 31, 2001.

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Incentive Savings Plan

The Company’s employees participate in PNC’s Incendve
Savings Plan (“ISP”), a defined contribution plan. Under the
ISP, employee contributions of up to 6% of eligible compen-
sation, subject to Internal Revenue Code limitadons, are
matched by the Company (the “Company Match”). ISP
expenses for the Company were $3,397, $3,758 and $2,212
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Conwributions to the ISP are matched primarily
by shares of BlackRock’s common stock in 2001 and PNC’
common stock in 2000 and 1999, respectively. 500,000 shares
have been reserved for the ISP of which 81,556 shares have
been issued as of December 31, 2001.

Postretivement Benefits

PNC provides certain health care and life insurance benefits
for redred employees. Expenses for postretirement benefits
allocated to the Company by PNC were $276, $272 and
$225 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, accrued
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postretirement benefits included in the consolidated state-
ments of financial condition totaled $1,019 and $923, respec-
tively. No separate financial obligation data for the Company
is available with respect to such plan.

Noncontributory Defined Benefir Pension Plan

Certain employees of the Company participate in PNC’s
noncontributory defined benefit pension plan. Retirement
benefits are based on compensation level, age and length of
service. Pension contributions are based on actuarially deter-
mined amounts necessary to fund total benefits payable to
plan participants. During 1999, the Company contributed
approximately $1,600 to the plan and had a prepaid balance
of approximately $1,200 in pension benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000. These amounts were recorded
in other assets on the consolidated statements of financial
condition. Pension (income) expense was approximately $0,
$0 and $(81) for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.



7. STOCK AWARD AND INCENTIVE PLANS

Stock Award and Incentive Plan

Effective October 1, 1999, the Board of Directors of
BlackRock adopted the Award Plan. Optons are granted at
an exercise price not less than the market value of common

Stock opton activity during 1999 — 2001 is summarized below:

stock on the date of grant. These opdons have a ten year life,
vest ratably over periods ranging from 2-4 years and become
exercisable upon vesting.

Shares under Weighted-avg.

Outstanding at optdon exercise price
Qctober 1, 1999 — $ —
Granted 1,061,000 14.00
Exercised — —
Canceled 5,000 14.00
December 31, 1999 1,056,000 14.00
Granted 1,482,034 43.13
Exercised 53,024 14.00
Canceled 83,500 14.00
December 31, 2000 2,401,510 31.98
Granted 9,693 39.80
Exercised 103,226 14.00
Canceled 68,669 33.21
December 31, 2001 2,239,308 $32.80

A maximum of 9,000,000 shares of class A common stock are
authorized for issuance under the Award Plan at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. Of this amount, 6,604,442 shares remain

available for future awards. The number of shares vested at
December 31, 2001 was 586,423.

_Stock options outstanding and exercisable on December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Qutstanding shares

Qutstanding Weighted-avg. weighted-avg. Exercisable Exercisable shares

Range of shares under remaining exercise shares under weighted-avg.
exercise prices option contractual life price option exercise price
$14.00 792,581 7.75 $14.00 480,779 $14.00

$32.47 3,000 9.25 32.47 — —
$40.03-%$44.22 1,443,727 8.97 43.12 105,644 42.03
2,239,308 8.54 $32.80 586,423 $19.05

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On May 2, 2001, BlackRock’s shareholders approved the
adoption of the ESPP, the terms of which allow eligible
employees to purchase shares of the Company’s class A com--
mon stock at 85% of the lesser of fair market value on the
first or last day of each six-month offering period. Eligible
employees may not purchase more than 500 shares of class A
common stock in any six-month offering period. In addition,
for any calendar year in which the opton to purchase shares
is outstanding, Section 423 (b)8) of the Internal Revenue
Code restricts ESPP participants from purchasing more than
$25 worth of class A common stock based on its fair market
value. No charge to earnings will be recorded with respect
to the ESPP. The first offering period began on August 1,
2001. A total 0f 1,250,000 shares of class A common stock are

available for issuance under the ESPP. The number of shares
estimated to be issued pursuant to the ESPP for the offering
period ending February 1, 2002 is approximately 45,000.

Pro Forma Ner Income and Earnings Per Share

Under APB 25, no compensation costs were recognized
related to the Award Plan and shares issued under the ESPP.
Under SFAS No. 123, compensation costs related to the
Award Plan and shares issued under the ESPP are measured
at the grant date based on the fair value and are recognized
ratably over the vesting period. The following table sets forth
pro forma net income and diluted earnings per share as if
compensation expense was recognized for stock options and

the ESPP.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenzents continued

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except pev shaie data)

Net Income
Reported
Pro forma

Diluted Earnings Per Share
Reported
Pro forma

2001 2000 1999
$107.,434 $87,361 $59,417
$100,943 $85,859 $59,086

$1.65 $1.35 $1.04

$1.55 $1.33 $1.03

The fair value of each option grant and ESPP shares are estd-
mated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with

the following assumptions for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively:

Expected dividend yield
Expected voladility
Risk-free interest
Expected term

2001 2000 1999
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
30.04% to 30.69% 31.36% 27.50%
2.37% to 5.37% 5.88% 7.08%

7 years 7 years 7 years

The weighted-average fair value of the options granted and
ESPP shares in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $10.83, $19.92 and
$6.51 per share, respectively.

Deferved Compensation Plan

The Company has a Long-term Deferred Compensation
Plan (the “Plan™) to provide a competitive long-term incen-

tive for key officers and employees. The awards vest through
2004 and are expensed on a straight-line method over the
respective vesting periods. Compensation expense under the
Plan for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
was $3,592, $5,904, and $5,033, respectively.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide
investment advisory and administration services to the

BlackRock Funds, BPIF, the BlackRock Closed-end Funds and
other commingled funds.

Revenues for services provided to these mutual funds are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar arnounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Investment advisory and administration fees:

BlackRock Open-end Funds $122,476 $151,918 $142,597

BlackRock Closed-end Funds 30,474 33,916 34,581

BlackRock Provident Institutional Funds* 63,688 39,027 33,642

Commingled Funds 723 4,398 3,908
$217,361 $229,259 $214,728

*ncludes the International Dollar Reserve Fund I, Ltd., a Cayman Islands open ended limited liability comparny.
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The Company provides investment advisory and administra-
tion services to certain PINC subsidiaries for a fee, based
on assets under management. In addidon, the Company

Revenues for such services are as follows:

provides risk management and model portfolio services
to PNC.

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar armotnts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Investment advisory and administration fees:

Separate accounts $11,187 $9,703 $8,436

Model Portfolio Services 4,400 4,400 4,400

Other income-risk management 5,000 5,000 5,000

Fixed income wtrading services 1,125 1,125 281
$21,712 $20,228 $18,117

The Company has entered into various memoranda of
understanding and co-administration agreements with affili-
ates of PNC pursuant to which the Company pays adminis-
tradon fees for BPIF and certain other commingled funds
and service fees for PNC Advisors’ (PNC’s wealth manage-
ment business) clients invested in the BlackRock Funds.

The Company incurred interest expense to related parties in
connection with the 7.5% unsecured note with B.P. Partners,

L.P, an entity controlled by former partners of BlackRock
Financial Management, L.P,, and the revolving line of credit
with PINC Bank. PNC also provides general and administra-
don services to the. Company. Charges for such services were
based on actual usage or on defined formulas which, in man-
agement’s view, resulted in reasonable allocatons. Aggregate
expenses included in the consolidated financial statements
for transactions with related parties are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollur amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Fund administration and servicing costs-affiliates $60,829 $75,686 $78,666
General and administration 6,728 7,617 7,622
General and administration-consultng 1,270 142 —
Interest expense-affiliates — 353 10,938

$68,827 $83,798 $97.226

Additionally, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PNC
acts as a financial intermediary associated with the sale of
back-end loaded shares of certain BlackRock funds. This
endty finances broker sales commissions and receives all
associated sales charges.

Payable to affiliates was $15,972 and $14,750 at Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. These amounts primarily
represent income taxes payable and fund administration and
servicing costs-affiliates payable. These amounts do not
bear interest.

In connecdon with the Company’s investment advisory ser-
vices provided to PNC subsidiaries and affiliates, BlackRock’s
receivable from PNC was $3,653 and $1,650 at Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Receivable from affiliates was approximately $4,137 and
$1,484 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectvely. The
amount primarily represents a receivable for administradon
fees earned in connection with services provided to the

BlackRock Closed-end Funds and Anthracite Capital, Inc.

9. BLACKROCK ASSET INVESTORS

BFM previously served as an investment advisor to
BlackRock Asset Investors (“BAI™), a closed-end investment
company. BAI was liquidated on September 27, 1999 in
accordance with a plan adopted by BAT’s Board of Tiustees
and shareholders in 1997. BAI’s principal business was to
acquire, work out, pool and repackage performing and dis-
tressed comumercial, multfamily, and single family mortgage
loans as commercial or residential mortgage-backed securities

for sale in the capital markets through independent under-
writers and broker-dealers.

BFM recorded investunent advisory and administration fees
for BAI for the year ended December 31, 1999 of $1,943.
BFM earned performance fees based on a supulated percent-
age of the excess profits after BAI shareholders had received
a minimum return on invested capital. Based on the market
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value of BAIs underlying assets, overall investor returns and
final asset liquidadon values, the Company recorded a reduc-
don of previously recorded performance fees of $(9,015) for
the year ended December 31, 1999.

In accordance with various contractual arrangements includ-
ing the 1994 acquisiton agreement between PINC and BFM,
incentive compensation earned on BAI revenue was $(5,387)
for the year ended December 31, 1999.

10. NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

As a registered broker-dealer, BII is subject to the Uniform
Net Capital requirements under the Securites Exchange Act
of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain minimum net

capital levels. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, BIT’s net cap-
ital was $3,826 and $2,587 in excess of regulatory require-
ments, respectively.

11. COMMON STOCK

BlackRock’s class A, $0.01 par value, common shares autho-
rized was 250,000,000 shares as of December 31, 2001 and
2000. BlackRock’s class B, $0.01 par value, common shares

authorized was 100,000,000 shares as of December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

The Company’s common shares issued and outstanding and related activity consist of the following:

Shares issued

Shares outstanding

Common shares

Treasury shares

Class Class Class
A B A B A B

January 1, 1999 — 54,864,382 — (56,900) — 54,807,482
Issuance of class A

common stock 9,000,000 — — — 9,000,000 —_
Purchase of treasury stock — — —_ (156,574) — (156,574)
Sale of treasury stock — — — 213,474 — 213,474
December 31, 1999 9,000,000 54,864,382 — — 9,000,000 54,864,382
Purchase of treasury stock — — (353) — (353) —
Conversion of class B stock

to class A stock 430,145 (430,145) — — 430,145 (430,145)
Issuance of shares to

Nonemployee Directors 4,128 — —_— — 4,128 —
Issuance of class B

common stock —_ 75,638 — — — 75,638
Stock options exercised 53,024 —_ — — 53,024 —
December 31, 2000 9,487,297 54,509,875 (353) — 9,486,944 54,509,875
Conversion of class B stock

to class A stock 5,685,484 | (5,685,484) — — 5,685,484 | (5,685,484)
Issuance of class A

common stock 601,105 — 265 — 601,370 —
Issuance of class B

common stock — 58,638 — — e 58,638
Treasury stock transactions 143,058 (208,422) 88 (125,633) 143,146 (334,055)
December 31, 2001 15,916,944 | 48,674,607 — (125,633) | 15,916,944 | 48,548,974

The Company was formed in 1998 as a result of PINC’s deci-
sion to consolidate a substandal porton of its asset manage-
ment businesses under a common management and brand
(BlackRock). During 1999, the Company effected a 275:1
stock split by reclassifying each share of common stock issued
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into 275 shares of class B common stock (the “Stock Reclass-
ificadon”). The Stock Reclassification has been retroactvely
restated in the consolidated financial statements. BlackRock
also reissued 213,474 shares of class B common stock, held in
treasury, to key employees in the form of restricted stock.



These shares were sold at a discount to fair market value of
$2,200 which will be expensed on a straight-line basis over
the five-year vesting pertod. The discount was recorded as
additional paid-in capital and unearned compensation in the
consolidated statements of financial condition. The proceeds
from the sale of teasury stock approximated $750. On
October 1, 1999, BlackRock sold 9,000,000 shares of class A
common stock to the public at an initial price of $14 per

share (the “IPO”). The proceeds from the IPO, net of under-
writers’ discount and estimated IPO expenses, totaled
approximately $115,000. These proceeds were used to retire
a portion of BlackRock’s revolving line of credit with PNC
on October 7, 1999, In 2001, PNC converted 4,935,000
shares of class B common stock to 4,935,000 shares of
class A common stock.

12. INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liabil-
ity method prescribed by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
the differences between the financial statement carrying
amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respec-
tive tax basis.

Prior to and including October 6, 1999, the operating results
of the Company were primarily included in the consolidated
U.S. Federal tax returns of PINC or its subsidiaries. For state
and local income tax purposes, the Company was included in
the combined and unitary tax returns with PNC and its sub-
sidiaries, and filed separate company returns.

Effective October 6, 1999, PNC and BlackRock entered into
a tax disaffiliation agreement (the “Tax Disaffiliadon Agree-
ment”) that sets forth each party’s rights and obligations with

respect to income tax payments and refunds for periods
before and after the completion of the TPO and addresses
related matters such as the filing of tax returns and the con-
duct of audits or other proceedings involving claims made by
taxing authorites.

For periods beginning on October 7, 1999 and thereafter,
BlackRock has filed its own consolidated federal income tax
return. BlackRock may file separate state and municipal
income tax returns or may be included in state and/or munic-
ipal income tax returns with one or more PINC subsidiaries
on a combined or unitary basis. If BlackRock is included in a
group’s combined or unitary state or municipal income tax
filing with PNC subsidiaries, BlackRock’s share of the liabil-
ity generally will be based upon an allocation to BlackRock of
a percentage of the total tax liability based upon BlackRock’s
level of acdvity in such state or municipality.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Current:

Federal $63,398 $48,668 $39,540

State and local 17,272 16,206 11,320

Foreign 1,347 — —
Total current 82,017 64,874 50,860
Deferred:

Federal (5,289) (1,876) (5,177)

State and local (3,171) (442) (1,650)
Total deferred (8,460) (2,318) (6,827)
Total $73,557 $62,556 $44,033
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemments continued

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to sig-
nificant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities, which
are shown net in accounts payable and accrued liabilities-

affiliate in the consolidated statements of financial condition,
consist of the following:

December 31,

(Dollar amownts in thovsands) 2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:

Compensatdon and benefits $19,395 $10,039

Depreciation 3,742 2,851

Deferred state income taxes 3,620 4,003

Other 8,241 4,570
Gross deferred tax asset 34,998 21,463
Deferred tax liabilides:

Goodwill 22,863 19,845

Other 3,996 3,526
Gross deferred tax liability 26,859 23,371
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $8,139 ($1,908)

A reconciliation of income tax expense with expected federal income tax expense computed at the applicable federal income tax

rate of 35% is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 2001 Y% 2000 % 1999 %
Expected income tax

expense $63,347 35.0% $52,471 35.0% $36,208 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in

income taxes

resulting from:

State and local taxes 9,166 5.1 10,247 6.8 6,286 6.1

Other 1,044 0.6 (162) (0.1) 1,539 1.5
Income tax expense $73,557 40.6% $62,556 41.7% $44,033 42.6%

13. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Net income $107,434 $87,361 $59,417
Other comprehensive loss:

Unrealized loss from investients, available for sale, net (766) (2,069) 231

Foreign currency translation loss (294) (408) —
Comprehensive income $84,884 $59,186
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and dituted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31,

(Daollar arnounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Net income $107,434 $87,361 $59,417
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding 64,271,538 63,886,353 57,057,014

Dilutive potential shares from forward sales 107,130 173,947 175,153

Dilutive potential shares from stock options 547,531 530,407 36,745
Dilutive weighted-average shares outstanding 64,926,199 64,590,707 57,268,912
Basic earnings per share $1.67 $1.37 $1.04
Diluted earnings per share $1.65 $1.35 $1.04

Net income per common share is computed using the
weighted-average number of common and comimon equiva-
lent shares outstanding. Common and common equivalent
shares from stock options are excluded from the computation
if their effect is antidilutive, except that, pursuant to SAB
No. 98, “Earnings Per Share,” common and common

equivalent shares issued at prices below the public IPO price
during the twelve months immediately preceding BlackRock’s
IPO on October 1, 1999 have been included in the calcula-
tion as if they were outstanding for all periods presented
using the treasury stock method and the options’ exercise
price of $14.00 per share.

15. SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollay asnounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Cash paid for interest $804 $353 $11,408
Cash paid for income taxes $65,778 $80,046 $34,900

Supplemental schedule of noncash transactions:

December 31,

(Dollar arnounts in thousands) 2001 2000
Issuance of long term obligation in connection with

acquisiton of management contract $— $8,040
Stock-based compensation $6,024 $—
Reissuance of treasury stock, class A at a discount

to its fair market value $807 $—
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Involuntary Deferred Conzpensation Plan

During January 2002, the Company established an Involun-
tary Deferred Compensation Plan for the purpose of provid-
ing deferred compensation and retention incentives to key
officers and employees. The Involuntary Deferred Compen-
sation Plan provides for a mandatory deferral of up to 15%
of the annual incentive compensation. The mandatory defer-
ral of the annual incentive compensation for services per-
formed in 2001 is 5%. The mandatory deferral is matched by
BlackRock in an amount equal to 20%. Incentive compensa-
don vests on a straight-line basis over a three year vesting
period. The matching contribution and investment income
related to the mandatory deferral vests on the third year
anniversary of the deferral date. The Company will fund the
obligation through the establishment of a Rabbi trust on
behalf of the participants in the plan.

Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan

During January 2002, the Company established a Voluntary
Deferred Compensation Plan which allows participants to
elect to defer between 1% and 100% of that portion of his or
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her annual incentive compensation not mandatorily deferred
under the BlackRock’s Involuntary Deferred Compensation
Plan, subject to certain deferral thresholds. The partici-
pants must specify a deferral period of one, three, five or ten
years. The Company will fund the obligation through the
establishment of a Rabbi trust on behalf of the partcipants
in the plan.

The Rabbi trust established for the Involuntary and
Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plans will be reflected in
investments as trading securitdes in the accompanying con-
solidated statements of financial condition. Any earnings in
the Rabbi Trust, including unrealized appreciation (depreci-
adon) will be reflected as non-operating income or loss and
employee compensation and benefits in equal amounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Other

On January 4, 2002, the Company completed its final
funding of approximately $1,262 in Magnetite Asset Inves-
tors ITI, L.L.C., an alternative investinent fund sponsored by
BlackRock.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
BlackRock, Inc.

40 East 52nd Street

New York, NY 10022
(212) 754-5300

Stock Listing

BlackRock, Inc.s class A common stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol BLLK.
BlackRock’s class B common stock is not included for listing
or quotation on any established market. At the close of
business on March 1, 2002, there were 313 class A common
stockholders of record and 56 class B common stockholders
of record.

Internet Information

Informartion on BlackRock’s financial results and

its products and services is available on the internet at
www.blackrack.coms.

Financial Information

BlackRock’s Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed with the
Securidges and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Copies of
this document and other filings, including Exhibits thereto,
may be obtained electronically at the SEC’s homepage at
www.sec.gov. Copies also may be obtained by writing to
Joseph Feliciani, Director of Accounting, at corporate
headquarters, or by calling (212) 409-3519 or via e-mail to
feliciani@blackrock.com.

Inquiries
Individual stockholders should contact stockholder relations
at (212) 409-3441 or via e-mail at invrel@blackrock.com.

Analysts and institutdonal investors should contact
Paul L. Audet, Chief Financial Officer, at (212) 409-3555
or via e-mail at paudet@blackrock.com.

News media representatives and others seeking
general information should contact Raymond Ahn at
(212) 754-5359 or via e-mail at rabn@blackrock.com.

Annual Stockholders Meeting

All Stockholders are invited to attend the BlackRock
annual meeting on Tuesday, May 14, 2002, at 9 a.m.,
local dme, at the Omni Berkshire Place, 21 East 52nd
Street, Second Floor, New York, New York.

Common Stock Prices

The table below sets forth by quarter the range of high
and low sale and quarter-end closing prices for BlackRock
class A common stock.

2001 High Low Close
First Quarter ‘$44.00 $31.25  $36.00
Second Quarter $37.77 $30.76  $34.29
Third Quarter $44.50 $34.01 $44.22
Fourth Quarter $44.40 $37.46  $41.70
2000

Fourth Quarter $48.00 $31.88 $42.00
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Dividend Policy

BlackRock has not declared any dividends on its common
stock and presently intends to retain future earnings, if any,
for the development of our business and therefore does not
anticipate that our board of directors will declare or pay
any dividends on the class A common stock and class B
common stock in the foreseeable future. The declaration
of and payment of dividends by BlackRock are subject to
the discretion of our board of directors. BlackRock is a
holding company and, as such, our ability to pay dividends
is subject to the ability of our subsidiaries to provide cash
to us. The board of directors will determine future dividend
policy based on our results of operations, financial condi-
tions, capital requirements and other circumstances. In
addidon, because we are a consolidated subsidiary of PNC,
federal banking restrictions on payments of dividends by
PINC Bank may apply to us.
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(800) 851-9677
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PERI E NOTE

Past performance is no guarantee of | fusture results,

Liguidity and Fixed Income Mutual Funds: Performance data assumes
the reinv of dividends and capital gains distributions and reflects
the performance of the Institutional Class, except that Investor B Class
performance of the Government Income Portfolio of BlackRock Funds is
used. BlackRock waives fees, without which performance would be lower.

Relative peer group performance is based on quartiles from Lipper Inc.

Lipper rankings are based on total returns with dividends and distributions
reinvested and do not reflect sales charges. Funds with returns among the

top 25% of a peer group of funds with comparable objectives are in the first
quartile and funds with veturns in the next 25% of a peer group are in the

second quartile. Some funds bave less than ten years of performance.

The BlackRock Provident Institutional Funds TempFund and TempCash
are in the Institutional Money Market Lipper peer group, and Federal
Trust Fund and FedFund ave in the Institutional U.S. Government Money
Marker Lipper peer group. T-Fund and Treasury Trust Fund are in the
- Institutional U.S. Treasury Lipper peer group. MuniCash and MuniFund
are in the Institutional Tax-Exempt Money Market Lipper peer group.
" Califrnia Money Fund and New York Money Fund ave in the California
Tax-Exempt and New York Tax-Exempt Money Market Lipper peer

groups, respectively.

The BlackRock Funds International Bond, High Yield Bond, Intermediate
Bond, Intermediate Gover t Bond, GNMA, Government Income and
Low Duration Bond Portfolios ave in the International Income, High
Currént Yield, Short Intermediate Inve: Grade Debt, Intermediate
U.S. Government, GNMA, General U.S. Government and Short
Investment Grade Debt Lipper peer groups, respectively. The Tax-Free
Income, OH Tax Free Income, PA Tiux-Free Income, N Tax-Free Incone,
DE Tax-Free Income and KY Tax-Free Income Portfolios are in the
General Municipal Debt, OH Municipal Debt,, PA Municipal Debt;
NF Municipal Debt, Other States Municipal Debt and KY Municipal
Debt Lipper peer groups. The BlackRock Funds Core Bond Total Return
and Managed Income Portfolios ave in the Intermediate Inve Grade
Debt Lipper peer group. ‘

As with other money market funds, investments in BlackRock Provident
. Institutional Funds and the money market funds of BlackRock Funds are
neither insured mor guaranteed by the U.S. government and there is no
assurance that a fund will maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per
share. )

Fixed Income Compaﬁtes Performance: Resuits do not reﬁect the deduction

of g fadvisory fees and other expenses, which will reduce a client’s
veturn. For rple ing an ! gross return of 8.0% and an
! g t/advisory fee of 0.25%, the net annualized total .

veturn of & composite would be 7.74% over a 5-year period. Frank Russell
Company is the source of peer universe data for fixed income composites.
Sorme composites bave less than ten years of performance.
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